
UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 8-K/A
(Amendment No. 1)

CURRENT REPORT

Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Date of Report (Date of earliest event reported): January 8, 2007 (December 1, 2006)

ENERGY TRANSFER PARTNERS, L.P.
(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Charter)

Commission File Number: 1-11727
 

Delaware  73-1493906
(State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation)  (IRS Employer Identification No.)

2838 Woodside Street, Dallas, Texas  75204
(Address of Principal Executive Offices)  (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (214) 981-0700

Check the appropriate box below if the Form 8-K filing is intended to simultaneously satisfy the filing obligation of the registrant under any of the following
provisions:
 
☐ Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 under the Securities Act (17 CFR 230.425)
 
☐ Soliciting material pursuant to Rule 14a-12 under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14a-12)
 
☐ Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 14d-2(b) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14d-2(b))
 
☐ Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 13e-4(c) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.13e-4(c))

 



This Current Report on Form 8-K/A amends and supplements the Current Report on Form 8-K of Energy Transfer Partners, L.P., filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on December 5, 2006 (the “Form 8-K”), which reported under Item 2.01 the completion of the acquisition of Transwestern Pipeline
Company, LLC (“Transwestern”). This amendment is filed to provide the financial statements and the pro forma financial information required by Item 9.01, and
unless set forth below, all previous Items of the Form 8-K are unchanged.
 
Item 2.01. Completion of Acquisition or Disposition of Assets

On December 1, 2006, Energy Transfer Partners, L.P. (the “Partnership”) issued a press release announcing that it had completed its acquisition of
Transwestern. The acquisition was completed through a series of transactions, beginning on November 1, 2006, when the Partnership acquired all of the
outstanding Class B membership interests (representing a 50% ownership interest) of CCE Holdings, LLC (“CCEH”) from GE Financial Services and certain
other investors. On December 1, 2006, CCEH redeemed the Partnership’s 50% ownership interest in CCEH in exchange for 100% ownership of Transwestern.
The series of transactions were valued at a total of $1.465 billion. The Partnership funded a portion of the Transwestern acquisition through its issuance to Energy
Transfer Equity, L.P., on November 1, 2006 of 26,086,957 Class G Units, representing limited partner interests, in exchange for a cash contribution of $1.2
billion.

Transwestern’s primary asset is the Transwestern Pipeline, a 2,500 mile interstate natural gas pipeline system connecting supply areas in the San Juan Basin
in southern Colorado and northern New Mexico, the Anadarko Basin in the Mid-continent and the Permian Basin in west Texas to markets in the Midwest, Texas,
Arizona, New Mexico and California. The Transwestern Pipeline interconnects with the Partnership’s existing intrastate pipelines in west Texas and to other
interstate and intrastate pipelines located in west Texas.
 
Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits
 

 (a) Financial statements of businesses acquired.

The audited financial statements of Transwestern Pipeline Company, LLC as of and for the year ended December 31, 2005, and the unaudited financial
statements of Transwestern Pipeline Company, LLC as of September 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 and for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 and
2005, and the related notes, are filed as Exhibit 99.2 to this Current Report.
 
 (b) Pro forma financial information.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet as of August 31, 2006, and the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of operations for the year
ended August 31, 2006 of Energy Transfer Partners, L.P. and the related notes are filed as Exhibit 99.3 to this Current Report.
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 (c) Exhibits. The following exhibits are being furnished herewith:
 

Exhibit 23.1  -   Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

Exhibit 99.1
 

-   Press Release of the Registrant dated December 1, 2006 (previously filed as a part of this Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 5,
2006).

Exhibit 99.2

 

-   The audited financial statements of Transwestern Pipeline Company, LLC as of and for the year ended December 31, 2005, and the unaudited
financial statements of Transwestern Pipeline Company, LLC as of September 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 and for the nine months
ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, and the related notes.

Exhibit 99.3
 

-   The unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet as of August 31, 2006, and the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of operations
for the year ended August 31, 2006 of Energy Transfer Partners, L.P. and the related notes.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
hereunto duly authorized.
 

  Energy Transfer Partners, L.P.

  

By:
 

Energy Transfer Partners GP, L.P., General
Partner

  

By:
 

Energy Transfer Partners, L.L.C., General
Partner

Date: January 8, 2007   By: /s/ Ray C. Davis
   Ray C. Davis

   

Co-Chief Executive Officer and officer duly
authorized to sign on behalf of the registrant

  By: /s/ Kelcy L Warren
   Kelcy L. Warren

   

Co-Chief Executive Officer and officer duly
authorized to sign on behalf of the registrant
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Exhibit No.   Description

Exhibit 23.1   Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

Exhibit 99.1
  

Press Release of the Registrant dated December 1, 2006 (previously filed as a part of this Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 5,
2006).

Exhibit 99.2

  

The audited financial statements of Transwestern Pipeline Company, LLC as of and for the year ended December 31, 2005, and the unaudited
consolidated financial statements of Transwestern Pipeline Company, LLC as of September 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 and for the nine
months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, and the related notes.

Exhibit 99.3
  

The unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet as of August 31, 2006, and the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of operations
for the year ended August 31, 2006, of Energy Transfer Partners, L.P. and the related notes.
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EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (No. 333-136429 and No. 333 -133176) of Energy
Transfer Partners, L.P. of our report dated March 30, 2006 relating to the financial statements of Transwestern Pipeline Company, LLC., which appears in this
Current Report on Form 8-K/A (Amendment No. 1) of Energy Transfer Partners, L.P.
 
/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Houston, Texas
January 8, 2007



Exhibit 99.2
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with Report of Independent Auditors



TABLE OF CONTENTS
 
   Page
Report of Independent Auditors   1

Audited Financial Statements   

Balance Sheet - Assets   2
Balance Sheet - Liabilities and Member’s Equity   3
Statement of Operations   4
Statement of Member’s Equity   5
Statement of Cash Flows   6
Notes to Financial Statements   7-26



Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Managers of Transwestern Pipeline Company, LLC:

In our opinion, the accompanying balance sheet and the related statements of operations, of member’s equity and of cash flows present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Transwestern Pipeline Company, LLC (“the Company”) at December 31, 2005 and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Houston, Texas
March 30, 2006



TRANSWESTERN PIPELINE COMPANY, LLC
BALANCE SHEET

(In Thousands)
 

   
December 31,

2005  
ASSETS   

Current Assets   
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 17,529 
Accounts receivable - customers, net of allowance of $98    20,357 
Accounts receivable - associated companies    261 
Transportation and exchange gas receivable    4,812 
Materials and supplies    957 
Other    6,989 

    
 

Total Current Assets    50,905 
    

 

Property, Plant and Equipment, at Cost   
Plant in service    1,088,608 
Construction work in progress    7,419 

    
 

   1,096,027 
Less - Accumulated depreciation and amortization    (25,567)

    
 

 Property, Plant and Equipment, Net    1,070,460 
    

 

Other Assets   
Goodwill    113,289 
Regulatory assets    64,869 
Other    38,951 

    
 

Total Other Assets    217,109 
    

 

Total Assets   $1,338,474 
    

 

See accompanying notes.
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TRANSWESTERN PIPELINE COMPANY, LLC
BALANCE SHEET

(In Thousands)
 

   
December 31,

2005
LIABILITIES AND MEMBER’S EQUITY   

Current Liabilities   
Accounts payable   

Trade and other   $ 5,093
Associated companies    9,270

Transportation and exchange gas payable    5,140
Accrued taxes, other than income    5,777
Accrued interest    3,487
Other    11,489

    

Total Current Liabilities    40,256
    

Deferred Credits    12,206

Long-term Debt    565,000

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 8)   

Member’s Equity    721,012
    

Total Liabilities and Member’s Equity   $1,338,474
    

See accompanying notes.
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TRANSWESTERN PIPELINE COMPANY, LLC
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

(In Thousands)
 

   

Year Ended
December 31,

2005  
Revenues   

Transportation   $ 187,274 
Gas and liquids sales    48,995 
Other revenues    90 

    
 

Total Revenues    236,359 
    

 

Costs and Expenses   
Operating and maintenance    58,514 
Amortization of regulatory assets    4,394 
Depreciation and amortization    30,341 
Taxes, other than income taxes    11,086 

    
 

Total Costs and Expenses    104,335 
    

 

Operating Income    132,024 

Other Income (Expense)   
Interest income    1,119 
Interest expense and related charges, net    (33,553)
Other, net    3,482 

    
 

Total Other Income (Expense)    (28,952)
    

 

Net Income   $ 103,072 
    

 

See accompanying notes.
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TRANSWESTERN PIPELINE COMPANY, LLC
STATEMENT OF MEMBER’S EQUITY

(In Thousands)
 

   
Member’s

Equity  
Balance, December 31, 2004    627,720 

Net income    103,072 
Purchase price adjustment    (10,480)
Member’s contributions    55,000 
Member’s distributions    (54,300)

    
 

Balance, December 31, 2005   $721,012 
    

 

See accompanying notes.
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TRANSWESTERN PIPELINE COMPANY, LLC
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(In Thousands)
 

   

Year Ended
December 31,

2005  
Cash Flows From Operating Activities   
Net income   $ 103,072 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operating activities:   

Depreciation and amortization    30,341 
Amortization of regulatory assets    4,394 
Other assets and liabilities, non-cash adjustments    2,640 
Amortization of debt costs    1,752 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:   

Accounts receivable    (1,423)
Transportation and exchange gas receivable    (1,406)
Accounts payable    (11,754)
Transportation and exchange gas payable    2,034 
Accrued taxes, other than income    (191)
Accrued interest    129 
Other current assets and liabilities    4,153 

    
 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities    133,741 
    

 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities   
Additions to property, plant and equipment    (85,188)
Other capital expenditures    (2,472)
Decrease in current note receivable - associated company    4,000 

    
 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities    (83,660)
    

 

Cash Flows From Financing Activities   
Debt proceeds    20,000 
Debt repayments    (55,000)
Debt issuance costs    (765)
Member’s contributions    55,000 
Member’s distributions    (54,300)

    
 

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities    (35,065)
    

 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents    15,016 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Period    2,513 
    

 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Period   $ 17,529 
    

 

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information Cash paid during the period for:   
Interest   $ 32,242 

Other noncash Operating activities were:   
Lease termination and build-out costs   $ (3,098)
Other post employment benefits    (2,300)

See accompanying notes.
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TRANSWESTERN PIPELINE COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
(1) Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

At December 31, 2005, Transwestern Pipeline Company, LLC (Transwestern) was a wholly owned subsidiary of Transwestern Holding Company, LLC
(TW Holdings). Effective March 31, 2004, pursuant to Enron’s plan of reorganization filed with the United States Bankruptcy Court in the Southern
District of New York (Bankruptcy Court), Enron Corp. (Enron) and certain of its subsidiaries transferred their interests in TW Holdings, among other
assets, to CrossCountry Energy, LLC (CrossCountry), which at the time was a wholly owned subsidiary of Enron.

Effective November 17, 2004, CrossCountry became a wholly owned subsidiary of CCE Holdings, LLC (CCE Holdings), which is a joint venture owned
by subsidiaries of Southern Union Company (Southern Union)(50 percent), a subsidiary of GE Commercial Finance Energy Financial Services (GE)
(approximately 30 percent) and four minority interest owners (approximately 20 percent in the aggregate). All of the voting interests in CCE Holdings are
owned by Southern Union and GE. Also, on or about November 17, 2004, Transwestern and certain other affiliated entities were converted to limited
liability companies. Transwestern will cease to exist on November 15, 2034, unless sooner terminated or dissolved.

The acquisition of CrossCountry by CCE Holdings (the Acquisition) was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The assets acquired and liabilities assumed were recorded at their estimated fair value as of the
acquisition date based on the results of outside appraisals. CCE Holdings applied “push-down” accounting to each of its subsidiaries, including
Transwestern, to give effect to the purchase price as of the date of the Acquisition. Accordingly, the post-Acquisition financial statements reflect a new
basis of accounting.

The following table summarizes the final purchase accounting-based changes in owner’s equity associated with the Acquisition as of November 17, 2004,
including details of the fair value adjustments (which have been adjusted in 2005 from our original preliminary allocation, see Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets policy) to the pre-acquisition carrying amounts of the net assets acquired. These fair values were recorded based on the finalization of
outside appraisals and include the following (in millions):

 
Owner’s Equity, pre-Acquisition   $647.9 

    
 

Deferred tax liabilities retained by seller    70.5 
Fair value adjustments to pre-Acquisition net assets   

Working capital    8.5 
Property, plant and equipment    6.5 
Other long-term assets    (1.2)
Other intangible assets    12.6 
Goodwill    113.3 

    
 

Total adjustments    210.2 
    

 

Member’s Equity, post-Acquisition   $858.1 
    

 

The fair value adjustment related to the Acquisition and attributed to property, plant and equipment is being accreted to expense over an average estimated
remaining useful life of 39 years, based on the underlying pipeline assets. Goodwill is not being amortized, pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” The other intangible assets, comprised of certain contracts and software costs, are
estimated to have remaining useful lives ranging from 3 to 12 years.

Transwestern owns and operates approximately 2,500 miles of interstate natural gas pipeline system extending from Texas and Oklahoma, through the San
Juan Basin to the California
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TRANSWESTERN PIPELINE COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
border. Transwestern is a major natural gas transporter to the California border and delivers natural gas from the east end of its system to Texas intrastate
and Midwest markets.

Regulatory Accounting

Transwestern is subject to regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). Transwestern’s accounting policies generally conform to
SFAS No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation.” Accordingly, certain assets and liabilities that result from the regulated
ratemaking process are recorded that would not be recorded under GAAP for nonregulated entities (see Notes 7 and 8).

Revenue Recognition

Revenues consist primarily of fees earned from natural gas transportation services. Reservation revenues on firm contracted capacity are recognized ratably
over the contract period. For interruptible or volumetric-based services, revenues are recorded upon the delivery of natural gas to the agreed upon
redelivery point. Revenues for all services are generally based on the heating value, denominated in British thermal units of gas delivered or subscribed, at
a rate specified in the contract. Recognition of revenues received in advance of delivery of natural gas is deferred until the gas is delivered.

Because Transwestern is subject to FERC regulations, revenues collected during the pendency of a rate proceeding may be required by the FERC to be
refunded in a final order. Transwestern establishes reserves for these potential refunds, as appropriate. There were no such reserves at December 31, 2005.

Derivative Instruments

Transwestern may engage in price risk management activities and accounts for these activities under SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended. Under SFAS No. 133, all derivative instruments are recognized in the balance sheet at their fair values
and changes in fair value are recognized immediately in earnings, unless the derivatives qualify and are designated as hedges of future cash flows, fair
values, net investments or qualify and are designated as normal purchases and sales. For derivatives treated as hedges of future cash flows, the effective
portion of changes in fair value is recorded in other comprehensive income until the related hedged items impact earnings. Any ineffective portion of a
hedge is reported in earnings immediately. Derivatives designated as normal purchases or sales are recorded and recognized in income using accrual
accounting.

During 2005 all of Transwestern’s commercial contracts were designated normal purchases or normal sales. The contract types designated as normal
include: (i) transportation; (ii) purchases of materials and services; (iii) system balancing agreements and third party storage; (iv) operational balancing
agreements; and (v) operational gas purchases and sales.

Debt Issuance Costs

Transwestern capitalizes costs incurred in conjunction with the issuance of debt and amortizes such costs as an adjustment to interest expense over the life
of the respective debt.
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TRANSWESTERN PIPELINE COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
Property, Plant and Equipment

On November 17, 2004 Transwestern, along with other CrossCountry subsidiaries, was acquired by CCE Holdings. Transwestern’s property, plant and
equipment was adjusted to estimated fair value on November 17, 2004 and depreciated since that date based on the revised estimated remaining useful
lives.

Property, Plant and Equipment (see Note 3) consists primarily of natural gas pipeline and related facilities, and is recorded at their original cost of
construction or acquisition. Transwestern capitalizes direct costs, such as labor and materials, and indirect costs, such as overhead and interest associated
with capital projects. The cost of repairs is charged to operating and maintenance expenses. Costs of extensions, replacements and renewals of units of
property are capitalized. The original cost of property retired is charged to accumulated depreciation and amortization, net of salvage and removal costs. No
retirement gain or loss is included in the results of operations except in the case of sales or retirements of operating units.

Impairment losses are recognized for long-lived assets used in operations when indicators of impairment are present and the undiscounted cash flows are
not sufficient to recover the assets’ carrying value. The amount of impairment is measured by comparing the fair value of the asset to its carrying amount.

An accrual of allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC) is a utility accounting practice calculated under guidelines prescribed by the FERC
and capitalized as part of the cost of utility plant. It represents the cost of servicing the capital invested in construction work-in-progress. AFUDC has been
segregated into two component parts – borrowed funds and equity funds. The allowance for borrowed and equity funds used during construction totaled
$2.7 million for 2005. AFUDC borrowed is included in Interest Expense and AFUDC equity is included in Other Income in the accompanying statements
of operations.

Transportation and Exchange Gas Imbalances, Net

Natural gas imbalances occur as a result of differences in volumes of gas received and delivered. Transwestern records natural gas imbalance in-kind
receivables and payables at the dollar weighted composite average of all current month gas transactions and dollar valued imbalances are recorded at
contractual prices. The imbalances are settled periodically at the request of the party that is owed natural gas. Upon the requested settlement date, the party
that owes the natural gas will settle the imbalance, based on the applicable transportation agreement, by either: (i) delivering the required physical volume
of natural gas; or (ii) paying a cumulative dollar value amount as calculated per the operator balancing agreement. The dollar valued imbalances are settled
at the contractual index rate.

Computer Software

Transwestern’s accounting policy for the costs of computer software (all of which is for internal use by Transwestern and its affiliates only) is to capitalize
direct costs of materials and services consumed in developing or obtaining software, including payroll and payroll-related costs for employees who are
directly associated with and who devote time to the software project. Costs are capitalized during the application development stage. All other costs are
expensed as incurred. Transwestern amortizes the costs at a rate of 10 percent per year. Impairment is evaluated based on changes in the expected
usefulness of the software. Computer software is included in Property Plant and Equipment under Intangible Assets (see Note 3).
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TRANSWESTERN PIPELINE COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
Environmental Expenditures

Expenditures that relate to an existing condition caused by past operations, and do not contribute to current or future revenue generation, are expensed.
Environmental expenditures relating to current or future revenues are expensed or capitalized as appropriate based on the nature of the costs incurred.
Liabilities are recorded when environmental assessments and/or clean ups are probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated (see Note 8).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Transwestern’s cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. The carrying amount of cash and cash
equivalents approximates fair value because of the short maturity of these investments.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the portion of the cost of CrossCountry, “pushed down” to Transwestern by CCE Holdings as a result of the Acquisition, that is in
excess of the fair value of Transwestern’s tangible and intangible assets and liabilities. In 2005, CCE Holdings obtained third-party valuations of certain
assets and liabilities and evaluated certain contingencies, including income tax exposures. The allocation of the purchase price was finalized during 2005
with adjustments made where necessary based on the better indicators of value obtained.

The adjustments (reductions) to goodwill in 2005 are (in millions):
 

Linepack   $(10.6)
Enron working capital settlement    (10.2)
Lease termination and build-out costs    3.1 
Other post employment benefits    2.3 
Miscellaneous    (0.3)

    
 

  $(15.7)
    

 

Intangible assets are recorded at fair value and are amortized to expense over their estimated useful lives. Certain intangible assets (other than goodwill) are
presented as a component of Property, Plant and Equipment (see Note 3).

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized to expense, but are reviewed for impairment annually and whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. If the fair value exceeds its carrying value, then the asset is
not impaired. If its carrying value exceeds its implied fair value, then an impairment loss equal to the excess is recognized. For goodwill, the determination
of whether an impairment has occurred is based on estimates of Transwestern’s discounted future cash flows as well as multiples of comparable companies
and acquisitions as compared to the carrying value of Transwestern’s net assets. No impairments of goodwill or other intangible assets were recognized
during 2005.

System Gas

Transwestern accounts for system balancing gas using the fixed asset accounting model established under FERC Order No. 581. Under this approach,
system gas volumes are classified as fixed assets and valued at historical cost. Encroachments upon system gas are valued at current market prices.
Transwestern may sell system gas in excess of its system operational requirements.
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TRANSWESTERN PIPELINE COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Transwestern establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts on trade receivables based on the expected ultimate recovery of these receivables.
Transwestern considers many factors including historical customer collection experience, general and specific economic trends and known specific issues
related to individual customers, sectors and transactions that might impact collectibilty. The allowance for doubtful accounts was $0.1 million at
December 31, 2005.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

FSP No. FAS 106-2, “Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003.”
Issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) in May 2004, FASB Financial Staff Position (FSP) No. FAS 106-2 (FSP FAS 106-2) requires
entities to record the impact of the Medicare Drug Prescription Act as an actuarial gain in the postretirement benefit obligation for postretirement benefit
plans that provide drug benefits covered by that legislation. Transwestern adopted this FSP as of March 31, 2005, the effect of which was not material to its
financial statements. The effect of this FSP may vary as a result of any future changes to Transwestern’s benefit plans.

FIN No. 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations.” Issued by the FASB in March 2005, this interpretation clarifies that the term
“conditional asset retirement obligation” as used in SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,” refers to a legal obligation to perform
an asset retirement activity in which the timing and/or method of settlement are conditioned on a future event that may or may not be within the control of
the entity. Accordingly, the entity is required to recognize a liability for the fair value of a conditional asset retirement obligation when incurred, if the fair
value of the liability can be reasonably estimated. FIN No. 47 provides guidance for assessing whether sufficient information is available to record an
estimate. Transwestern adopted FIN No. 47 on December 31, 2005 and recognized its estimated obligation by recording a $0.9 million deferred credit and
an increase to property, plant and equipment related to certain asbestos removal related obligations.

On June 30, 2005, the FERC issued a final order on accounting for pipeline assessment costs that requires pipeline companies to expense rather than
capitalize certain costs related to mandated pipeline integrity programs (under the Pipeline Safety Improvement Act of 2002). The accounting release
determined that assessment activities associated with an integrity management program must be accounted for as maintenance and charged to expense in
the period incurred. Costs associated with any remediation or rehabilitation can be capitalized. The FERC accounting guidance is effective January 1, 2006,
for regulatory accounting purposes. Transwestern expects to apply the order for its regulatory accounting beginning in 2006 and that there will be no
impact on Transwestern as Transwestern already expenses such costs.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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TRANSWESTERN PIPELINE COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
(2) Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt at December 31, 2005 was as follows (in thousands):
 

   
December 31,

2005
5.39% Notes due November 17, 2014   $ 270,000
5.54% Notes due November 17, 2016    250,000
Revolving Credit Facility for up to $230.0 million, at LIBOR plus 0.45%, maturing December 21, 2010 (the

Revolving Facility)    45,000
    

Total outstanding    565,000
Less current maturities    —  

    

Long-term   $ 565,000
    

Aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2005 are as follows (in thousands):
 

2006   $ —  
2007    —  
2008    —  
2009    —  
2010    45,000
Thereafter    520,000

    

Total   $565,000
    

No principal payments are required under any of the debt agreements prior to their respective maturity dates. On December 31, 2005, Transwestern had
$45.0 million outstanding under the Revolving Facility which is due by December 21, 2010, the maturity date of the facility.

On December 21, 2005, Transwestern entered into an amended and restated agreement to the Term Loan and Revolver agreements converting the entire
amounts into one revolving credit facility for up to $230.0 million. The Revolving Facility amendment allows the entire amount to be available for letters
of credit and extends the maturity date to December 21, 2010. The costs of refinancing the debt on Transwestern’s books were capitalized as a non-current
asset and are being amortized to interest expense ratably over the life of each debt instrument. Under the credit agreement covenants, Transwestern is
required to maintain certain debt to capital and interest coverage ratios. At December 31, 2005, Transwestern was in compliance with all such covenants.
The fair value of Transwestern’s senior notes at December 31, 2005 was approximately $511.3 million. The fair value of long-term debt is based upon
market quotations of similar debt at interest rates currently available. The fair value of the Revolving Facility at December 31, 2005 approximates its book
value given the variable rate of interest. The interest rate in effect under the Revolving Facility at December 31, 2005 was 4.82 percent, based on LIBOR
plus 0.45 percent.

Transwestern’s credit agreements contain certain other restrictions that, among other things, limit the incurrence of additional debt, the sale of assets and
the payment of dividends.
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TRANSWESTERN PIPELINE COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
(3) Property, Plant and Equipment

The principal components of Transwestern’s Property, Plant and Equipment at December 31, 2005 are as follows (in thousands):
 

   
Lives

(Years)  2005  
Transmission Plant   40-83  $1,055,908 
General Plant   10    9,419 
Intangible Assets   5-12    23,281 
Construction Work-in-progress   —     7,419 

      
 

Property, Plant and Equipment, at Cost      1,096,027 
Less - Accumulated depreciation and amortization      (25,567)

      
 

Property, Plant and Equipment, Net     $1,070,460 
      

 

Included in gross property, plant and equipment at December 31, 2005 is an aggregate plant acquisition adjustment of $283.4 million, which represents
costs allocated to Transwestern’s transmission plant as a result of its acquisition by CCE Holdings. This amount has not been included in the determination
of tariff rates Transwestern charged to its regulated customers. The unamortized balance of this adjustment was $275.0 million at December 31, 2005 and is
being amortized over 39 years, the composite weighted average estimated remaining life of Transwestern’s assets as of the Acquisition date.

Intangible assets include the following (in thousands):
 

   
Lives

(Years)  2005  
Intangible Assets included in Property, Plant and Equipment:     

Computer Software   5-12   $23,281 
Less - Accumulated depreciation and amortization      (4,216)

      
 

Intangible Assets included in Property, Plant and Equipment - Net     $19,065 
      

 

Intangible Assets included in Other Assets:     
Customer contracts   3   $12,600 
Less - Accumulated depreciation and amortization      (4,713)

      
 

Intangible Assets included in Other Assets - Net     $ 7,887 
      

 

The provision for depreciation and amortization is computed using the straight-line method based on estimated economic or FERC mandated lives.
Transwestern’s composite depreciation rates are applied to the FERC functional groups of gross property having similar economic characteristics.
Transmission Plant is depreciated at rates ranging from 1.2 percent to 2.86 percent per year. General Plant is depreciated at 10.0 percent per year. Intangible
Assets are depreciated at rates ranging from 8.0 percent to 20.0 percent per year.

Amortization of intangible assets is estimated to be approximately $8.4 million in 2006, $7.2 million in 2007, $3.1 million in 2008 and $2.9 million in 2009
and $2.6 million in 2010.
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(4) Accounts Receivable and Related Activity

Transwestern has a concentration of customers in the electric and gas utility industries. This concentration of customers may impact Transwestern’s overall
exposure to credit risk, either positively or negatively, in that the customers may be similarly affected by changes in economic or other conditions. From
time to time, specifically identified customers having perceived credit risk are required to provide prepayments or other forms of collateral to Transwestern.
Transwestern sought additional assurances from customers due to credit concerns, and held aggregate prepayments of $0.6 million at December 31, 2005.
Transwestern’s management believes that the portfolio of receivables, which includes regulated electric utilities, regulated local distribution companies and
municipalities, is subject to minimal credit risk.

During December 2005, one of Transwestern’s top ten customers, Calpine Energy, filed for bankruptcy protection under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy
Code. Transwestern recorded transportation revenues from Calpine of $5.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. Transwestern continues to
transport gas for Calpine and receive payments from Calpine. Transwestern also holds certain security associated with the Calpine contract, but is exposed
to potential revenue reductions if Calpine ceases performing and rejects the contract in bankruptcy and replacement shippers willing to pay the same rate
are not found. It is not known at this time what impact, if any, Calpine’s bankruptcy will have on Transwestern.

The following customers accounted for a significant portion of Transwestern’s total revenues during 2005 (in millions):
 

   

Year Ended
December 31,

2005
Southern California Gas Company (SoCal)   $ 44.1
BP Energy Company (BP)    26.9
Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PGE)    20.9

Transwestern had receivables of $1.5 million from SoCal, $2.5 million from BP and $2.0 million from PGE at December 31, 2005.

Transwestern’s top customer, SoCal, had transportation contracts which expired on October 31, 2005. Effective November 1, 2005 the contracts were
renegotiated and replaced with terms less favorable on rates and volumes for Transwestern and could have a significant impact on the results of operations
in future periods if replacement shippers are not found.
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(5) Balance Sheet Details

The detail of certain balance sheet items as of December 31, 2005 follows (in thousands):
 

   
December 31,

2005
Other Current Assets   

Prepaid right-of-way   $ 3,238
Miscellaneous other prepayments    3,625
Other    126

    

  $ 6,989
    

Other Assets   
Unamortized debt costs   $ 14,919
Prepaid right-of-way    12,628
Intangible assets - contracts, net    7,887
Deferred development costs    2,688
Annual regulatory commission costs    799
Other    30

    

  $ 38,951
    

Other Current Liabilities   
Capital and expense accruals   $ 3,510
Environmental liabilities    3,454
Incentive plan accruals    1,115
Labor and related benefit accruals    888
Customer deposits    637
Other miscellaneous accruals    1,885

    

  $ 11,489
    

Deferred Credits   
Environmental liabilities   $ 10,175
Retiree medical liabilities    933
Asset retirement obligation – asbestos    865
Other miscellaneous    233

    

  $ 12,206
    

 

(6) Employee Benefit Plans

Transwestern’s participation in the Enron benefit plans terminated during November 2004 and its employees migrated, without lapse, to new employee
welfare and benefits plans adopted by CCE Holdings. Transwestern was charged $3.9 million for all such benefits during 2005.

Effective January 1, 2005, CCE Holdings adopted the CrossCountry Energy Savings Plans (the Plans). All employees of CCE Holdings and its
subsidiaries, including Transwestern, are eligible to participate and, under one plan, may contribute up to 50 percent of pre-tax compensation, subject to
IRS limitations. This Plan allows additional “catch-up” contributions by participants over age 50, and allows CCE Holdings to make discretionary profit
sharing contributions for the benefit of all participants. CCE Holdings matches 50 percent of participant contributions under this plan
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up to a maximum of 4 percent of eligible compensation. Participants vest in such matching and any profit sharing contributions at the rate of 20 percent per
year, except that participants with five years of service at the date of adoption of the Plans were immediately vested. Administrative costs of the Plans and
certain asset management fees are paid from Plan assets.

Enron maintained a pension plan that was a noncontributory defined benefit plan, the Enron Corp. Cash Balance Plan (the Cash Balance Plan) covering
certain Enron employees in the United States and certain employees in foreign countries. The basic benefit accrual was 5 percent of eligible annual base
pay.

Enron initiated steps to terminate the Cash Balance Plan through a standard termination in 2003. The Cash Balance Plan was underfunded at December 31,
2003. In June 2004, the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation (PBGC) filed a complaint in the United States District Court for the Southern District of
Texas to terminate the Cash Balance Plan and other pension plans of Enron debtor companies and affiliates (the Enron Plans). If the PBGC successfully
terminated the Enron Plans in this suit, each member of the Enron “controlled group of corporations” within the meaning of Section 414 of the Tax Code,
and certain other Enron affiliates, would be jointly and severally liable, under Title IV of ERISA, for the Enron Plans’ unfunded benefit liabilities. Under
certain circumstances, the PBGC may enforce ERISA Title IV liability through the imposition of liens. On September 10, 2004, Enron agreed to deposit
$321.8 million in an escrow account to cover, among other things, the unfunded benefit liabilities relating to the Enron Plans. The escrow account was
funded with a portion of the proceeds from Enron’s sale of CrossCountry. Transwestern recognized a $5.9 million current liability reflecting its estimated
share of the costs of terminating the Cash Balance Plan, which was cash settled to CCE Holdings in March, 2005. Under the Purchase Agreement,
Transwestern is not required to make further contributions to the Cash Balance Plan, beyond its accrued liability, after the date of the Purchase Agreement.
Additionally, Enron agreed (subject to a cap) to indemnify and hold harmless Transwestern, CrossCountry and certain other members of the CrossCountry
group for, among other things, any joint and several liability arising under Title IV of ERISA or due to Transwestern’s status as a participating employer in
certain Enron benefit plans, including the Cash Balance Plan. Accordingly, Transwestern does not believe that the ultimate resolution of these matters will
have a material adverse effect on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Employee Retirement Benefits

During the period December 1, 2004 through February 28, 2005 medical coverage to eligible employees and their eligible dependents was provided by
CrossCountry Energy Retiree Health Plan. Effective March 1, 2005 such benefits are provided under an identical plan sponsored by Transwestern as a
single employer post-retirement benefit plan.

Transwestern was previously a participating employer in the Enron Gas Pipelines Employee Benefit Trust (the Trust), a voluntary employees’ beneficiary
association (VEBA) under Section 501(c)(9) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (Tax Code), which provides benefits to employees of
Transwestern and certain other Enron affiliates pursuant to the Enron Corp. Medical Plan and the Enron Corp. Medical Plan for Inactive Participants. Enron
has made the determination that it will partition the Trust and distribute the assets and liabilities of the Trust among the participating employers of the Trust
on a pro rata basis according to the contributions and liabilities associated with each participating employer. The Trust Committee has final approval on
allocation methodology for the Trust assets. Enron filed a motion in the Enron bankruptcy proceedings on July 22, 2003 which was stayed and then refiled
and amended on June 17, 2005 which provides that each participating employer expressly assumes liability for its allocable portion of retiree benefits and
releases Enron from any liability with respect to the Trust in order to receive the assets of the Trust. On June 7, 2005 a class action suit captioned Lou
Geiler et al v. Robert W. Jones, et al., was filed in United States District Court for the District of Nebraska by, among others, former employees of Northern
Natural Gas Company (Northern) on
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behalf of the participants in the Northern Medical and Dental Plan for Retirees and Surviving Spouses against former and present members of the Trust
Committee, the Trustee and the participating employers of the Trust, including Transwestern, claiming the Trust Committee and the Trustee have violated
their fiduciary duties under ERISA and seeking a declaration from the Court binding on all participating employers of an accounting and distribution of the
assets held in the Trust and a complete and accurate listing of the individuals properly allocated to Northern from the Enron Plan. On the same date
essentially the same group filed a motion in the Enron bankruptcy proceedings to strike the Enron motion from further consideration. Both motions remain
pending in the Enron bankruptcy court. On February 6, 2006 the Nebraska action was dismissed.

With regard to its sponsored plan, Transwestern has entered into a VEBA trust (the “VEBA Trust”) agreement with Bank One Trust Company as a trustee.
The VEBA Trust has established or adopted plans to provide certain post-retirement life, sick, accident and other benefits. The VEBA Trust is a voluntary
employees’ beneficiary association under Section 501(c)(9) of the Tax Code, which provides benefits to employees of Transwestern. Transwestern
contributed $0.4 million to the VEBA Trust for the year ended December 31, 2005 and recorded additional actuarially determined obligations recognized in
conjunction with the Acquisition of $1.1 million remaining in deferred credits as of December 31, 2005. Transwestern also recorded a regulatory asset of
$1.1 million in anticipation of recovering these costs in rates (see Note 7). Upon settlement of the Trust, any distribution of assets Transwestern receives
from the Trust, estimated to be approximately $2.9 million per the Enron filing described above, will be contributed to the VEBA Trust.

Following its November 17, 2004 acquisition by CCEH, Transwestern continues to provide certain retiree benefits through employer contributions to a
qualified contribution plan, with the amounts generally varying based on age and years of service.

Prior to 2005, Transwestern’s general policy was to fund accrued post-retirement health care costs as allocated by Enron. As a result of Transwestern’s
change in 2005 from a participant in a multi employer plan to a single employer plan, Transwestern now accounts for its OPEB liability and expense on an
actuarial basis, recording its health and life benefit costs over the active service period of employees to the date of full eligibility for the benefits.
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The following table represents a reconciliation of Transwestern’s OPEB plan at December 31, 2005:

 

   

Year Ended
December 31,

2005  
OPEB (in thousands)   
Change in Benefit Obligation   

Benefit obligation at plan adoption (1)   $ 4,434 
Service cost    42 
Interest cost    213 
Actuarial gain    (1,850)
Retiree premiums    356 
Benefits paid    (382)

    
 

Benefit obligation at end of year   $ 2,813 
    

 

Change in Plan Assets   
Fair value of plan assets at plan adoption (1) (2)   $ 2,861 
Return on plan assets    162 
Employer contributions    433 
Retiree premiums    356 
Benefits paid    (382)

    
 

Fair value of plan assets at end of year   $ 3,430 
    

 

Funded Status   
Funded status at end of year   $ 616 
Unrecognized net actuarial gain    (1,751)

    
 

Net liability recognized at December 31, 2005   $ (1,135)
    

 

 

(1) For purposes of this reconciliation, the plan adoption date is considered to be January 1, 2005.
 

(2) Plan assets include the amount of assets expected to be received from the Enron Trust.

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine Transwestern’s benefit obligations for the year ended December 31, 2005 were as follows:
 

As of December 31, 2005   
Discount rate   5.50%
Health care cost trend rates   

(graded to 4.65% by year 2012)   12.00%
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Transwestern’s OPEB benefit costs for the period presented consisted of the following:

 
OPEB (in thousands)   
Service cost   $ 42 
Interest cost    213 
Expected return on plan assets    (162)
Amortization of prior service cost    —   
Recognized actuarial gain    (97)

    
 

Net periodic benefit cost   $ (4)
    

 

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine Transwestern’s OPEB benefit costs for the period presented were:
 

Year Ended December 31, 2005   
Discount rate   5.75%
Expected long-term return on plan assets   5.00%
Health care cost trend rates   

(graded to 4.75% by year 2012)   12.00%

Transwestern employs a building block approach in determining the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets. Historical markets are studied and
long-term historical relationships between equities and fixed-income are preserved consistent with the widely accepted capital market principle that assets
with higher volatility generate a greater return over the long run. Current market factors such as inflation and interest rates are evaluated before long-term
market assumptions are determined. The long-term portfolio return is established via a building block approach with proper consideration of diversification
and rebalancing. Peer data and historical returns are reviewed to check for reasonability and appropriateness.

The sensitivity to changes in assumed health care cost trend rates for Transwestern ‘s OPEB is as follows:
 

   
1 Percentage

Point Increase  
1 Percentage

Point Decrease 
(in thousands)     
Effect on total service and interest cost components   $ 6  $ (6)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation   $ 113  $ (99)

Discount Rate Selection - The discount rate for each measurement date is selected via a benchmark approach that reflects comparative changes in the
Moody’s Long Term Corporate Bond Yield for AA Bond ratings with maturities 20 years and above and the Citigroup Pension Liability Index Discount
Rate.

The result is compared for consistency with the single rate determined by projecting the aggregate employer provided benefit cash flows from each plan for
each future year, discounting such projected cash flows using annual spot yield rates published as the Citigroup Pension Discount Curve on the Society of
Actuaries website for each measurement date and determining the single discount rate that produces the same discounted value. The result is rounded to the
nearest multiple of 25 basis points.
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Plan Asset Information - The plan assets shall be invested in accordance with sound investment practices that emphasize long-term investment
fundamentals. An investment objective of income and growth for the plan has been adopted. This investment objective: (i) is a risk-averse balanced
approach that emphasizes a stable and substantial source of current income and some capital appreciation over the long-term; (ii) implies a willingness to
risk some declines in value over the short-term, so long as the plan is positioned to generate current income and exhibits some capital appreciation; (iii) is
expected to earn long-term returns sufficient to keep pace with the rate of inflation over most market cycles (net of spending and investment and
administrative expenses), but may lag inflation in some environments; (iv) diversifies the plan in order to provide opportunities for long-term growth and to
reduce the potential for large losses that could occur from holding concentrated positions; and (iv) recognizes that investment results over the long-term
may lag those of a typical balanced portfolio since a typical balanced portfolio tends to be more aggressively invested. Nevertheless, this plan is expected
to earn a long-term rate of return that compares favorably to appropriate market indices.

It is expected that these objectives can be obtained through a well-diversified portfolio structure in a manner consistent with the investment policy.

Transwestern’s OPEB weighted-average asset allocation by asset category for the $0.4 million of assets actually in the VEBA Trust at December 31, 2005
is as follows:

 

   

Year Ended
December 31,

2005  
Equity securities   0%
Debt securities   0%
Cash and cash equivalents   100%

   
 

Total   100%
 
(7) Rate Matters and Regulatory Issues

Rate matters and regulatory issues are regulated by the FERC, and are subject to the provisions of SFAS No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of Certain
Types of Regulation.” SFAS No. 71 allows companies whose service obligations and prices are regulated to record deferred charges (regulatory assets)
representing costs they expect to recover from customers through inclusion in future rates. Likewise, costs recovered that should be excluded from the rate
base are recorded as deferred credits (regulatory liabilities). If events were to occur that would make the recovery of these assets and liabilities no longer
probable, Transwestern would be required to write down these regulatory assets and liabilities.
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The principal components of Transwestern’s regulatory assets at December 31, 2005 are as follows (in thousands):

 
   2005
Regulatory assets:   

Accumulated reserve adjustment   $43,799
AFUDC gross-up    9,191
Environmental costs (see Note 8)    4,902
South Georgia deferred tax receivable    2,638
Other post employment benefits (see Note 6)    1,135
Deferred contract reformation costs    505
Deferred loss on receivables    722
Litigation costs    633
Purchase gas adjustments alternative rate recovery    447
Other    897

    

  $64,869
    

At December 31, 2005, all of Transwestern’s regulatory assets are considered probable of recovery in rates.

The accumulated reserve adjustment included in the table above resulted from a settlement agreement dated May 2, 1995 (May 2, 1995 Settlement) further
described below. The settlement approved Transwestern’s proposal to refunctionalize certain facilities from production and gathering to transmission, and
from transmission to production and gathering. As directed by the FERC Order (Docket No. RP95-271-000) issued upon approval of the settlement,
Transwestern established a regulatory asset for an accumulated reserve adjustment of $50.1 million, which represents the difference between recorded
amounts of accumulated depreciation (determined on a vintage basis) and approved amounts of accumulated depreciation based on remaining reserves
related to the gathering facilities. The accumulated reserve adjustment is being amortized at a 1.2 percent annual rate. Concurrent with the amortization,
Transwestern records an entry to reduce depreciation expense and reduce accumulated amortization. Management believes that these entries are appropriate
based on the intent of the settlement. Transwestern intends to continue to seek recovery of this asset in future rate case filings.

In the May 2, 1995 Settlement, Transwestern and certain of its current firm customers also agreed to contract settlement rates through the lives of these
customers’ contracts, and agreed that Transwestern would be required to file a new rate case to become effective no later than November 1, 2006. The
settlement was approved on July 27, 1995.

Transwestern filed on April 8, 2004 an application with the FERC in CP04-104-000 for an expansion project (Expansion Project) that increased
incremental capacity by 375,000 dekatherms per day on the San Juan Lateral from the Blanco Hub, located in San Juan County, New Mexico, to the Gallup
area located at the interconnection of the San Juan Lateral and Transwestern’s mainline. The Expansion Project expanded Transwestern’s natural gas
transmission system through the construction of approximately 72.6 miles of pipeline looping on the existing San Juan Lateral and causing Transwestern to
abandon, install, and modify facilities at three existing compressor stations for additional compression totaling 20,000 horsepower. The Expansion Project
was approved by the FERC on August 5, 2004, and the facilities were placed in service on May 1, 2005 at a final estimated cost to construct of $123.9
million.
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(8) Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, in the normal course of business, Transwestern is involved in litigation, claims or assessments that may result in future economic
detriment. Transwestern evaluates each of these matters and determines if loss accruals are necessary as required by SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for
Contingencies.” Transwestern does not expect to experience losses that would be materially in excess of the amounts accrued at December 31, 2005.

Legal Proceedings

In re Natural Gas Royalties Qui Tam Litigation, MDL Docket No. 1293 (D. Wy), the plaintiff has filed actions against a number of companies, including
Transwestern, now transferred to the U.S. District Court for the District of Wyoming, for damages for mismeasurement of gas volumes and Btu content,
resulting in lower royalties to mineral interest owners. Transwestern believes that its measurement practices conformed to the terms of its FERC Gas Tariff,
which is filed with and approved by FERC. Transwestern’s legal exposure, if any, related to the ultimate resolution of this matter is not currently
determinable.

Transwestern is managing three threatened trespass actions related to right of way (ROW) on Tribal or allottee land. The first action involves an agreement
with the United States Department of the Interior, Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA) covering 44 miles of ROW on a total of 69 Navajo allotments. This ROW
agreement expired on January 1, 2004. One allottee sent a letter dated January 16, 2004 to the BIA claiming Transwestern is trespassing. Discussions are
ongoing with the BIA to approve the renewal application, which was filed in October 2002. The second action involves a 1990 Grant of Easement and
Right of Way by the Secretary of the Interior covering 6.6 miles of Southern Ute land assigned by Northwest Pipeline Corporation (Northwest Pipeline) to
Transwestern in 1996. Application was made to the BIA for approval of that assignment, but no action was taken. On May 27, 2003 and September 2,
2003, counsel for the Southern Ute Tribe sent letters to Transwestern alleging trespass. Under the operative regulations and the underlying agreements,
Transwestern believes that the consent of the Tribe is not required to assign the ROW grant from Northwest Pipeline to Transwestern. A tentative
settlement has been reached in this matter which extends the subject ROW, which expired in September, 2005 to September 2020. The third action
concerns 5,100 feet of ROW on private allotments within the Laguna Pueblo expired on December 28, 2002. Transwestern received a letter dated
March 19, 2003 from the BIA on behalf of the two allottees asserting trespass. Transwestern’s legal exposure related to this matter is not currently
determinable. The settlement will not have a material impact on Transwestern’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Effective December 16, 2004, Citicorp North America, Inc. (Citicorp) claimed, in its capacity as the Paying Agent and Co-Administrative Agent, that any
recovery in the litigation captioned Enron Corp. et al. v. Citigroup, Inc. et al. (the Litigation), together with legal fees and expenses incurred by Citicorp in
defending the Litigation, would be indemnity obligations (the Obligations) of Transwestern under its Credit Agreement dated November 13, 2001. Under
the terms of the Purchase Agreement, CCE Holdings and certain of its subsidiaries are indemnified against the Obligations by Enron and certain of its
subsidiaries. Accordingly, Transwestern does not believe that it has any material liability from Citicorp’s claims.

On December 30, 2005, CPW America Co. filed suit against Transwestern (CPW America Co. v. Transwestern Pipeline Company, LLC, 11th Judicial
District Court of Harris County, Texas) seeking $1.5 million, plus interest and fees, based upon a sworn account, breach of contract, breach of covenant of
good faith and fair dealing, unjust enrichment and quantum meruit. CPW claims Transwestern failed to make full payment to CPW for pipe provided to
Transwestern for the San Juan Expansion. Transwestern filed an answer to these claims on January 20, 2006 in which Transwestern denied any liability in
this matter.
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Phoenix Expansion Project

On November 22, 2005, FERC granted Transwestern’s request to use the pre-filing review process for Transwestern’s proposed Phoenix Expansion
Project. The project has been assigned Docket No. PF06-4-000. The Phoenix Expansion Project, as currently proposed, consists of the construction and
operation of approximately 260 miles of 36-inch diameter natural gas pipeline extending from the existing mainline in Yavapai County, Arizona to delivery
points in the Phoenix, Arizona area. In addition, Transwestern proposes to complete the looping on its existing San Juan Lateral with approximately 25
miles of 36-inch diameter pipeline. Other major facilities include the abandonment and the replacement of the existing compression facilities at
Transwestern’s Compressor Station No. 4. Transwestern is proposing to file its application on or before July 1, 2006, with a projected in-service date of
early 2008. As of February 28, 2006 Transwestern has executed expansion agreements with shippers for volumes sufficient in Transwestern’s judgment to
commence further development of the Phoenix Expansion Project. The project scope and structure are under discussion with the CCE Holdings members.

Rates and Regulatory Matters

On August 1, 2002, the FERC issued an Order to Respond (August 1 Order) to Transwestern. The order required Transwestern, within 30 days of the date
of the order, to provide written responses stating why the FERC should not find that: (i) Transwestern violated FERC’s accounting regulations by failing to
maintain written cash management agreements with Enron; and (ii) the secured loan transactions entered into by Transwestern in November 2001 were
imprudently incurred and why the costs arising from such transactions should be passed on to ratepayers. Transwestern filed a response to the August 1
Order and subsequently entered into a settlement with the FERC staff that resolved, as to Transwestern, the issues raised by the August 1 Order. The FERC
approved this settlement; however, a group of Transwestern’s customers filed a request for clarification and/or rehearing of the FERC order approving the
settlement. This customer group claimed that there is an inconsistency between the language of the settlement agreement and the language of the FERC
order approving the settlement. This alleged inconsistency relates to Transwestern’s ability to pass through to its ratepayers the costs of any replacement or
refinancing of the secured loan transactions entered into by Transwestern in November 2001. Transwestern filed a response to the customer group’s request
for rehearing and/or clarification and this matter is currently awaiting FERC action.

On December 15, 2003, the U.S. Department of Transportation issued a Final Rule requiring pipeline operators to develop integrity management programs
(Pipeline Integrity Program) to comprehensively evaluate their pipelines, and take measures to protect pipeline segments located in what the regulation
defines as “high consequence areas” (HCAs). This rule resulted from the enactment of the Pipeline Safety Improvement Act of 2002, a bill signed into law
on December 17, 2002. The rule requires operators to identify HCAs along their pipelines by December 2004 and to have begun baseline integrity
assessments, comprised of in-line inspection (smart pigging), hydrostatic testing, or direct assessment, by June 2004. Operators must risk rank their
pipeline segments containing HCAs, and must complete assessments on at least 50 percent of the segments using one or more of these methods by
December 2007. Assessments will generally be conducted on the higher risk segments first with the balance being completed by December 2012. The costs
of utilizing these methods typically range from a few thousand dollars per mile to in excess of $15,000 per mile. In addition, some system modifications
will be necessary to accommodate the in-line inspections. While identification and location of all the HCAs has been completed, it is impossible to
determine the scope of required remediation activities prior to completion of the assessments and inspections. Therefore, the cost of implementing the
requirements of this regulation is impossible to determine with certainty at this time. The required modifications and inspections are estimated to range
from approximately $3.0 – $5.0 million per year, inclusive of remediation costs.
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Environmental Matters

Transwestern is subject to extensive federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations. These laws and regulations require expenditures in
connection with the construction of new facilities, the operation of existing facilities and for remediation at various operating sites. The implementation of
the Clean Air Act Amendments is expected to result in increased operating expenses. These increased operating expenses are not expected to have a
material impact on Transwestern’s financial position or results of operations.

Transwestern conducts soil and groundwater remediation at a number of its facilities. The costs of such remediation totaled $4.4 million during 2005. The
total future estimated cost of remediation activities is $13.6 million. The costs over the next five years are expected to be: 2006 - $3.6 million, 2007 -
$2.0 million, 2008 - $1.8 million, 2009 - $1.7 million and 2010 - $1.4 million. The expenditures thereafter are estimated to be $3.1 million for soil and
groundwater remediation. Approximately $5.3 million of these costs were recorded in expense for 2005 for remediation of several compressor sites on the
Transwestern system for the presence of polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) which are not eligible for recovery in rates. The accrual is recognized in other
current liabilities and other deferred credits in the accompanying 2005 balance sheet. Transwestern also established a regulatory asset of $4.9 million for
the portion of soil and groundwater remediation not related to PCBs and will request recovery of these costs in the next rate case (see Note 7).

Transwestern incurred, and continues to incur, certain costs related to PCBs that migrated into customer’s facilities. Because of the continued detection of
PCBs in the customer’s facilities downstream of Transwestern’s Topock and Needles stations, Transwestern, as part of ongoing arrangements with
customers, continues to incur costs associated with containing and removing the PCBs. Costs of these remedial activities totaled $0.4 million during 2005.
Future costs cannot be reasonably estimated because remediation activities are undertaken as claims are made by customers and former customers, and
accordingly, no accrual has been established for these costs at December 31, 2005. However, such future costs are not expected to have a material impact
on Transwestern’s financial position or results of operations or cash flows.

Environmental regulations were recently modified for United States Environmental Protection Agency’s Spill Prevention, Control and Countermeasures
(SPCC) program. Transwestern is currently reviewing the impact to its operations and expects to expend resources on tank integrity testing and any
associated corrective actions as well as potential upgrades to containment structures. Costs associated with tank integrity testing and resulting corrective
actions cannot be reasonably estimated at this time, but Transwestern believes such costs will not have a material adverse effect on its financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

Capital Commitments and Purchase Obligations

Transwestern and certain of its affiliates, as former members of the Enron consolidated tax group through November 16, 2004, are jointly and severally
liable for the tax liability of the consolidated group for the years that they were members of the group pursuant to Treasury regulation §1.1502-6 or any
state, local or foreign tax arising under the principles of successor or transferee liability. Management believes that Transwestern’s exposure to Enron’s
consolidated tax liability is limited, in part because the purchase agreement (Purchase Agreement), dated June 24, 2004 (as amended by that certain
Amendment No. 1 to Purchase Agreement, dated September 1, 2004, and that certain Amendment No. 2 to Purchase Agreement, dated November 11,
2004), for the Acquisition provided for an indemnification of the Transfer Group Companies, as defined therein, by Enron for any federal or state income
tax liabilities in excess of $5.7 million.

Transwestern has operating leases, some of which are subject to a CPI-based adjustment, which extend existing rights-of-way along its natural gas pipeline
system. Lease costs charged to expense were $6.5 million during 2005.

 
24



TRANSWESTERN PIPELINE COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
Future minimum payments under non-cancelable leases are as follows (in millions):

 

Year Ending December 31,   
Operating

Leases
2006   $ 3.2
2007    3.3
2008    3.3
2009    3.3
2010    0.3
Thereafter    3.3

    

Total   $ 16.7
    

In addition to the lease payments, Transwestern recognizes noncash lease expense related to amortization of prepayments made in accordance with certain
lease terms. In 2001, Transwestern paid $3.5 million in a lump sum for a right-of-way lease, which is being amortized to lease expense over the twenty-
year period beginning January 1, 2003. In 2002, Transwestern paid $18.0 million in a lump sum for a right-of-way lease, which is being amortized to lease
expense over the six-year period beginning January 1, 2004. Included in the above schedule for that six-year lease agreement are amounts that commenced
January 1, 2004 at an initial annual payment of $2.3 million, subject to a CPI-based adjustment in future years. The remainder of the future minimum lease
payments pertains to a twenty-year lease agreement with annual payment requirements of $0.3 million, which became effective on December 28, 2002.

 
(9) Related Party Transactions

Under a Guaranty Agreement with Enron and certain of its subsidiaries, CrossCountry and certain of its subsidiaries (including Transwestern) jointly and
severally guaranteed all obligations of CCE Holdings related to the Purchase Agreement.

Effective April 1, 2004, services previously provided by bankrupt Enron affiliates to Transwestern pursuant to the allocation methodology ordered by the
Bankruptcy Court were covered and charged under the terms of the Transition Services Agreement / Transition Supplemental Services Agreement
(TSA/TSSA). This agreement between Enron and CrossCountry is administered by CrossCountry Energy Services, LLC (CCES), which has allocated to
Transwestern its share of total costs. Effective November 17, 2004, an amended TSA/TSSA agreement was put into effect. This agreement expired on July
31, 2005. The total costs are not materially different from those previously charged. Transwestern accrued administrative expenses from Enron and
affiliated service companies of approximately $1.3 million in the period of January 1, 2005 through July 31, 2005.

Effective November 5, 2004, CCE Holdings entered into an Administrative Services Agreement (ASA) with SU Pipeline Management LP (Manager), a
wholly owned subsidiary of Southern Union. Pursuant to the ASA, Manager is responsible for the operations and administrative functions of the enterprise,
CCE Holdings and Manager will share certain operations of Manager and its affiliates, and CCE Holdings and its subsidiaries will be obligated to bear their
allocated share of costs of the Manager and its affiliates, as well as certain transition costs and, under certain conditions, pay annual management fees to
Manager. Costs are allocated by Manager and its affiliates to the operating subsidiaries and investees, based on relevant criteria, including time spent, miles
of pipe, total assets, labor allocations, or other appropriate methods. Transition costs are non-recurring costs of establishing the shared services, including
but not limited to severance costs, professional fees, certain transaction costs, and the costs of relocating offices and personnel. Management fees are to be
calculated based on a percentage of the amount by which certain earnings targets are exceeded. All management fees were expensed by CCE Holdings in
2005. Administrative costs allocated to Transwestern under the ASA totaled $3.4 million in the

 
25



TRANSWESTERN PIPELINE COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
year ended December 31, 2005. Shared services are also exchanged between other affiliate companies.

Effective November 18, 2004, Transwestern entered into a revolving credit agreement with CCES to provide CCES with up to $5.0 million of additional
working capital. The interest rate in effect under the agreement is LIBOR plus 0.875 percent. CCES repaid the $4.0 million balance outstanding at
December 31, 2004 by March 2005. On December 31, 2005 there was no balance outstanding.

 
(10) Subsequent Event (unaudited)

On September 15, 2006, a series of transactions was announced which are designed to result in Southern Union owning the 50% indirect interest in Florida
Gas Transmission Company (FGT), currently owned by CCE Holdings, and eliminating its ownership interest in Transwestern. To effect these transactions,
Energy Transfer Partners, L.P. (Energy Transfer) has entered into an agreement to acquire the 50% Class B membership interest in CCE Holdings from GE
and other investors. CCE Holdings was formed in 2004 to purchase CrossCountry from Enron and its affiliates.

Additionally, Energy Transfer and CCE Holdings have entered into a Redemption Agreement whereby Energy Transfer’s 50% Class B membership interest
will be redeemed in exchange for 100% of the equity interests in Transwestern. Upon closing of both transactions, CCE Holdings will be 100% owned by
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Southern Union and will own 50% of Citrus Corp., the holding company for FGT. The remaining 50% of Citrus Corp. is
owned by an affiliate of El Paso Corporation. CCE Holdings will continue to have outstanding approximately $455 million in indebtedness after the closing
of both transactions.

The transactions are expected to close in the fourth quarter of 2006 pending receipt of necessary regulatory approvals and other customary closing
conditions.
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TRANSWESTERN PIPELINE COMPANY, LLC
BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited)
 

   
September 30,

2006   
December 31,

2005  
   (In Thousands)  
ASSETS    

Current Assets    
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 48,236  $ 17,529 
Accounts receivable - customers, net of allowance of $788 and $98 in 2006 and 2005, respectively    19,774   20,357 
Accounts receivable - associated companies    428   261 
Transportation and exchange gas receivable    5,517   4,812 
Materials and supplies    968   957 
Other    4,901   6,989 

    
 

   
 

Total Current Assets    79,824   50,905 
    

 
   

 

Property, Plant and Equipment, at Cost    
Plant in service    1,074,345   1,088,608 
Construction work in progress    26,744   7,419 

    
 

   
 

   1,101,089   1,096,027 
Less - Accumulated depreciation and amortization    (31,601)  (25,567)

    
 

   
 

 Property, Plant and Equipment, Net    1,069,488   1,070,460 
    

 
   

 

Other Assets    
Goodwill    113,289   113,289 
Regulatory assets    62,007   64,869 
Other, net    29,542   38,951 

    
 

   
 

Total Other Assets    204,838   217,109 
    

 
   

 

Total Assets   $ 1,354,150  $1,338,474 
    

 

   

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TRANSWESTERN PIPELINE COMPANY, LLC
BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited)
 

   
September 30,

2006   
December 31,

2005
   (In Thousands)
LIABILITIES AND MEMBER’S EQUITY     

Current Liabilities     
Accounts payable     

Trade and other   $ 1,526  $ 5,093
Associated companies    4,890   9,270

Transportation and exchange gas payable    5,558   5,140
Accrued taxes, other than income    8,120   5,777
Accrued interest    10,493   3,487
Other    15,885   11,489

        

Total Current Liabilities    46,472   40,256
        

Deferred Credits    9,922   12,206

Long-term Debt    520,000   565,000

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 10)     

Member’s Equity    777,756   721,012
        

Total Liabilities and Member’s Equity   $ 1,354,150  $1,338,474
        

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TRANSWESTERN PIPELINE COMPANY, LLC
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)
 

   

Nine Months
Ended

September 30,
2006   

Nine Months
Ended

September 30,
2005  

   (In Thousands)  
Revenues    

Transportation   $ 124,783  $ 142,137 
Gas and liquids sales    41,998   33,232 
Other revenues    68   68 

    
 

   
 

Total Revenues    166,849   175,437 
    

 
   

 

Costs and Expenses    
Operating and maintenance    48,177   38,040 
Amortization of regulatory assets    2,698   3,494 
Depreciation and amortization    25,043   22,569 
Taxes, other than income taxes    9,008   8,837 

    
 

   
 

Total Costs and Expenses    84,926   72,940 
    

 
   

 

Operating Income    81,923   102,497 

Other Income (Expense)    
Interest income    786   475 
Interest expense and related charges, net    (23,054)  (24,826)
Other, net    89   3,484 

    
 

   
 

Total Other Income (Expense)    (22,179)  (20,867)
    

 
   

 

Net Income   $ 59,744  $ 81,630 
    

 

   

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TRANSWESTERN PIPELINE COMPANY, LLC
STATEMENT OF MEMBER’S EQUITY

(Unaudited)
 

   
Member’s

Equity  
   (In Thousands) 
Balance, December 31, 2005    721,012 

Distributions to Member    (3,000)
Net income    59,744 

    
 

Balance, September 30, 2006   $ 777,756 
    

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TRANSWESTERN PIPELINE COMPANY, LLC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)
 

   
Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2006   

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2005  

   (In Thousands)  
Cash Flows From Operating Activities    
Net income   $ 59,744  $ 81,630 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operating activities:    

Depreciation and amortization    25,043   22,569 
Amortization of regulatory assets    2,698   3,494 
Amortization of debt costs    1,305   1,303 
Provision for bad debts    690   —   
Other assets and liabilities, non-cash adjustments    (1,612)  (1,240)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:    

Accounts receivable    (273)  (2,088)
Transportation and exchange gas receivable    (705)  (5,478)
Accounts payable    (7,947)  (5,978)
Transportation and exchange gas payable    418   3,880 
Accrued taxes, other than income    2,343   3,779 
Accrued interest    7,006   7,255 
Other current assets and liabilities    5,022   4,298 

    
 

   
 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities    93,732   113,424 
    

 
   

 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities    
Capital expenditures    (29,565)  (78,530)
Proceeds from sale of assets    14,626   —   
Decrease in current note receivable - associated company    —     4,000 

    
 

   
 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities    (14,939)  (74,530)
    

 
   

 

Cash Flows From Financing Activities    
Debt proceeds    —     20,000 
Debt repayments    (45,000)  —   
Debt issuance costs    (86)  (661)
Member’s contributions    —     20,000 
Distributions to Member    (3,000)  (19,300)

    
 

   
 

Net Cash Provided/(Used) in Financing Activities    (48,086)  20,039 
    

 
   

 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents    30,707   58,933 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Period    17,529   2,513 
    

 
   

 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Period   $ 48,236  $ 61,446 
    

 

   

 

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information    
    Cash paid during the period for:    

Interest   $ 14,725  $ 16,853 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TRANSWESTERN PIPELINE COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2006
(Unaudited)

 
(1) Basis of Presentation

Transwestern Pipeline Company, LLC (Transwestern) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Transwestern Holding Company, LLC (TW Holdings). Effective
March 31, 2004, pursuant to Enron Corp’s (Enron) plan of reorganization filed with the United States Bankruptcy Court in the Southern District of New
York (Bankruptcy Court), Enron and certain of its subsidiaries transferred their interests in TW Holdings, among other assets, to CrossCountry Energy,
LLC (CrossCountry), which at the time was a wholly owned subsidiary of Enron.

Effective November 17, 2004, CrossCountry became a wholly owned subsidiary of CCE Holdings, LLC (CCE Holdings), which is a joint venture owned
by subsidiaries of Southern Union Company (Southern Union)(50 percent), GE Commercial Finance Energy Financial Services (GE)(approximately 30
percent) and four minority interest owners (approximately 20 percent in the aggregate). All of the voting interests in CCE Holdings are owned by Southern
Union and GE.

On September 15, 2006, a series of transactions was announced which are designed to result in Southern Union eliminating its indirect ownership interest
in Transwestern, which is to be acquired by Energy Transfer Partners, L.P. (Energy Transfer) and Southern Union owning all of the outstanding interests in
CCE Holdings. To effect these transactions, Energy Transfer entered into an agreement which closed November 1, 2006 to acquire the 50% Class B
membership interest in CCE Holdings from GE and other investors. Additionally, Energy Transfer and CCE Holdings entered into a Redemption
Agreement (Redemption) on December 1, 2006 whereby Energy Transfer’s 50 percent Class B membership interest in CCE Holdings was redeemed in
exchange for 100 percent of the equity interests in Transwestern. Effective with the close of the Redemption, CCE Holdings is 100 percent owned by
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Southern Union and owns 50 percent of Citrus Corp., the holding company for Florida Gas Transmission Company, LLC
with the remaining 50 percent of Citrus Corp owned by an affiliate of El Paso.

Transwestern owns and operates approximately 2,400 miles of interstate natural gas transmission pipeline extending from Texas, through the San Juan
Basin to the California border. Transwestern is a major natural gas transporter to the California border, and delivers natural gas from the east end of its
system to Texas intrastate and Midwest markets.

The financial statements included herein are unaudited. These statements reflect all adjustments which, in the opinion of management, are necessary for a
fair presentation of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the interim periods. Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified
to conform to the current period presentation and certain information and notes normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America have been condensed or omitted. The results of operations for the nine months
ended September 30, 2006 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full year. These financial statements should be read in
conjunction with Transwestern’s audited financial statements and the notes thereto for the year ended December 31, 2005.
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TRANSWESTERN PIPELINE COMPANY, LLC
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(2) New Accounting Principles

FIN 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an Interpretation of FASB Statement 109” (FIN 48 or the Interpretation): Issued by the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) in July 2006, this Interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an
enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with FASB Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition and
measurement threshold attributable for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosures and transition. FIN 48 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. Transwestern does not expect an impact on its financial statements because of its conversion
to an LLC on or about November 17, 2004.

FASB Statement No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (FASB Statement No. 157 or the Statement): Issued by the FASB in September 2006, this
Statement defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. Where applicable,
this Statement simplifies and codifies related guidance within generally accepted accounting principles. This Statement is effective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Transwestern is currently evaluating the impact of
this Statement on its financial statements.

FASB Statement No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans – an amendment of FASB Statements
No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R)” (FASB Statement No. 158 or the Statement): Issued by the FASB in September 2006, this Statement requires an employer to
recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of a defined benefit postretirement plan (other than a multiemployer plan) as an asset or liability in its
statement of financial position and to recognize changes in that funded status in the year in which the changes occur through comprehensive income. This
Statement also requires an employer to measure the funded status of a plan as of the date of its year-end statement of financial position, with limited
exceptions. The recognition and disclosure provision of the Statement are effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2006, and the measurement
provisions of the Statement are effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2008. Transwestern does not believe the adoption of this Statement will
have a material impact on its financial statements.

SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year
Financial Statements” (SAB No. 108). In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) provided guidance on the consideration of the
effects of prior year misstatements in quantifying current year misstatements for the purpose of a materiality assessment. SAB No. 108 establishes a dual
approach that requires quantification of financial statement errors based on the effects of the error on each of the company’s financial statements and the
related financial statement disclosures. SAB No. 108 is effective for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006. Transwestern does not believe the
adoption of this guidance will have a material impact on its financial statements.
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(3) Related Party Transactions

The following tables summarize transactions with affiliates (in millions):
 

   

Nine Months
Ended

September 30,
   2006   2005
Income Statement:     
Operating and maintenance expenses   $11.4  $ 9.0

Transwestern has related party activities with CrossCountry Energy Services, LLC (a subsidiary of CCE Holdings), Panhandle Eastern Pipe Line Company,
LP (a subsidiary of Southern Union) and other related parties for operational and administrative services performed on behalf of Transwestern and
corporate service charges from Southern Union. Expenses are generally charged based on either actual usage of services or allocated based on estimates of
time spent working for the benefit of the various affiliated companies.

 

   
September 30,

2006   
December 31,

2005
Balance Sheet:     
Accounts Receivable from Associated Companies   $ 0.4  $ 0.3
Accounts Payable to Associated Companies   $ 4.9  $ 9.3

Accounts Receivable from Associated Companies and Accounts Payable to Associated Companies are related to various operating and administrative
charges to and by its affiliates, respectively.

 
(4) Long Term Debt

The following table sets forth the long-term debt of Transwestern at the dates indicated.
 

Long-term Debt   
Year
Due   

September 30,
2006   

December 31,
2005

      (In thousands)
5.39% Senior Notes   2014  $ 270,000  $ 270,000
5.54% Senior Notes   2016   250,000   250,000
Revolving Credit Facility (LIBOR plus 0.45%)   2010   —     45,000

          

Total debt outstanding      520,000   565,000
Less current maturities      —     —  

          

Total long-term debt     $ 520,000  $ 565,000
          

Transwestern’s credit agreements contain financial covenants related to maintaining certain debt-to-capital ratios and interest coverage ratios.
Transwestern’s credit agreements also contain other restrictive covenants that, among other things, limit the incurrence of additional debt, limit the
distribution of capital and prohibit the sale of a significant portion of assets. Transwestern’s
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revolving credit facility also contains a change of control restriction. A failure by Transwestern to satisfy any such covenant would be considered an event
of default under the associated credit agreements, which would become immediately due and payable if Transwestern did not cure such default within any
permitted cure period or if Transwestern did not obtain amendments, consents or waivers from its lenders with respect to such covenants. In regard to the
senior unsecured debt, any change of control would require Transwestern to offer to prepay 100 percent of principal plus accrued interest to the date of
prepayment, but without any premium. At September 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, Transwestern was in compliance with all such covenants. On
September 30, 2006, Transwestern had no outstanding balance under the Revolving Facility which is due by December 21, 2010.

Due to the change of control which occurred upon Energy Transfer’s purchase of GE’s interest in CCE Holdings (including Transwestern) on November 1,
2006, Transwestern was required to offer to prepay the senior notes at par and has offered such prepayment on February 1, 2007. Note holders with
approximately $289.5 million of the senior notes have accepted the offer of prepayment. Transwestern plans to refinance these obligations with proceeds
from new bank financings and is in the preliminary stages of planning for the refinancing. If Transwestern is not able to obtain the refinancing within the
required timeframe, Transwestern intends to repay these obligations with proceeds borrowed from Energy Transfer under its existing credit
facilities. However, Transwestern reasonably believes that it has the ability to refinance these obligations within the required timeframes, although there
can be no assurances that the anticipated refinancings will occur.

Transwestern received consent under the terms of its revolving credit facility for the CCE Holdings change of control when Energy Transfer became a 50
percent owner of CCE Holdings on November 1, 2006. The Redemption transaction, which closed December 1, 2006, required the revolving credit facility
to be either approved by the lender, to be assumed by Energy Transfer or be terminated by Transwestern. Transwestern terminated its revolving credit
facility at the closing of the Redemption transaction.

 
(5) Benefits

Net periodic benefit cost for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005 for postretirement benefit plans other than pensions (OPEB) includes the
following components:

 

   
Nine Months Ended

September 30,  
OPEB     2006      2005   
   (In thousands)  
Service cost   $ 24  $ 32 
Interest cost    113   160 
Expected return on plan assets    (129)   (122)
Net (gain)/loss amortization    (92)   (73)

    
 

   
 

Net periodic benefit cost   $ (84)  $ (3)
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(6) Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC)

Other income, net, includes $0.2 million and $3.3 million of AFUDC for equity funds used during construction, and related gross-up, for the nine months
ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The amount in 2005 is primarily related to Transwestern’s San Juan 2005 Expansion Project placed in
service in May 2005 and included in the accompanying balance sheets within Property, Plant and Equipment.

Interest expense and related charges, net, includes nil and $0.7 million of AFUDC for borrowed funds used during construction for the nine months ended
September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The amount in 2005 is primarily related to Transwestern’s San Juan 2005 Expansion Project placed in service
in May 2005 and included in the accompanying balance sheets within Property, Plant and Equipment.

 
(7) Significant Customers

During December 2005, one of Transwestern’s significant customers, Calpine Energy Services, L.P. (Calpine), filed for bankruptcy protection under
Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code. In May 2006, Calpine, still under bankruptcy protection, repudiated its firm transportation contract with Transwestern
which could impact Transwestern’s results of operations in future periods if replacement shippers are not found at similar rates. In 2006, Transwestern
increased its bad debt reserve to $0.8 million against Accounts Receivable billed prior to Calpine’s rejection of the contract with an offsetting charge of
$0.7 million in Operating and Maintenance expense in the accompanying balance sheets and statements of operations.

Southern California Gas Company, one of Transwestern’s significant customers, had transportation contracts which expired on October 31, 2005. Effective
November 1, 2005 the contracts were renegotiated and replaced with terms less favorable on rates and volumes for Transwestern and will continue to have
a significant impact on the results of operations in future periods if replacement shippers are not found at similar rates.

 
(8) San Juan 2005 Expansion Project

Transwestern’s San Juan 2005 Expansion Project went into service May 1, 2005 resulting in increases in transportation revenues, partially offset by higher
operating expenses, depreciation and property taxes.

 
(9) System Balancing Expenses

System balancing gains and losses represent the settlement and valuation of volumetric gas imbalances which occur as a result of net differences of gas
received and delivered. Transwestern recorded a system balancing expense of $2.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 and gains of $4.0
million for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, respectively.
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(10) Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, in the normal course of business, Transwestern is involved in litigation, claims or assessments that may result in future economic
detriment. Where appropriate, Transwestern has made accruals in accordance with FASB Statement No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies, in order to
provide for such matters. Management believes the final disposition of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on Transwestern’s results of
operations or financial position.

Legal Proceedings

Jack Grynberg, an individual, has filed actions against a number of companies, including Transwestern, now transferred to the U.S. District Court for the
District of Wyoming, for damages for mis-measurement of gas volumes and Btu content, resulting in lower royalties to mineral interest owners. On
October 20, 2006, the District Judge adopted in part the earlier recommendation of the Special Master in the case and ordered the dismissal of the case
against Transwestern. Transwestern believes that its measurement practices conformed to the terms of its Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC)
Gas Tariffs, which were filed with and approved by FERC. As a result, Transwestern believes that it has meritorious defenses to these lawsuits (including
FERC-related affirmative defenses, such as the filed rate/tariff doctrine, the primary/exclusive jurisdiction of FERC, and the defense that Transwestern
complied with the terms of its tariffs) and will continue to vigorously defend against them, including any appeal which may be taken from the dismissal of
the Grynberg case. Transwestern does not believe the outcome of this case will have a material adverse effect on its financial position, results of operations
or cash flows.

Transwestern is managing two threatened trespass actions related to right of way (ROW) on Tribal or allottee land. The first action involves an agreement
with the United States Department of the Interior, Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA) covering 44 miles of ROW on a total of 69 Navajo allotments. This ROW
agreement expired on January 1, 2004. One allottee sent a letter dated January 16, 2004 to the BIA claiming Transwestern is trespassing. Discussions are
ongoing with the BIA to approve the renewal application, which was filed in October 2002. The second action concerns 5,100 feet of ROW on private
allotments within the Laguna Pueblo expired on December 28, 2002. Transwestern received a letter dated March 19, 2003 from the BIA on behalf of the
two allottees asserting trespass. Transwestern’s legal exposure related to this matter is not currently determinable. Settlement documents were fully
executed on June 14, 2006 on a third matter which involved a claim related to a 1990 Grant of Easement and Right of Way by the Secretary of the Interior
covering over 6.6 miles of Southern Ute land assigned by Northwest Pipeline Corporation (Northwest Pipeline) to Transwestern in 1996. Transwestern
received a Grant of Easement from the BIA for the 6.6 miles on October 30, 2006. The Grant of Easement and Right of Way extends the subject ROW,
which expired in September 2005 to September 2020 for a net cost to Transwestern of $1.8 million which is recorded within Other deferred assets in the
accompanying balance sheets. The cost of the right of way will be expensed to Operating and maintenance expense within the income statement over the
period of the agreement. The settlement will not have a material impact on Transwestern’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Effective December 16, 2004, Citicorp North America, Inc. (Citicorp) claimed, in its capacity as the Paying Agent and Co-Administrative Agent, that any
recovery in the litigation captioned Enron Corp. et al. v. Citigroup, Inc. et al. (the Litigation), together with legal fees and expenses incurred by Citicorp in
defending the Litigation, would be indemnity obligations (the Obligations) of Transwestern under its Credit Agreement dated November 13, 2001. Under
the terms of the Purchase Agreement, CCE Holdings and certain of its subsidiaries are indemnified against the
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Obligations by Enron and certain of its subsidiaries. Accordingly, Transwestern does not believe that it has any material liability from Citicorp’s claims.

On December 30, 2005, CPW America Co. filed suit against Transwestern (CPW America Co. v. Transwestern Pipeline Company, LLC, 11th Judicial
District Court of Harris County, Texas) seeking $1.5 million, plus interest and fees, based upon a sworn account, breach of contract, breach of covenant of
good faith and fair dealing, unjust enrichment and quantum meruit. CPW claims Transwestern failed to make full payment to CPW for pipe provided to
Transwestern for the San Juan Expansion. Transwestern settled this matter through mediation for $0.9 million which is reflected within Property, plant and
equipment in the accompanying balance sheets.

Phoenix Expansion Project

The Phoenix Expansion project, as filed with FERC on September 15, 2006, includes the construction and operation of approximately 260 miles of 36-inch
or larger diameter pipeline extending from Transwestern’s existing mainline in Yavapai County, Arizona to delivery points in the Phoenix, Arizona area and
certain looping on Transwestern’s existing San Juan Lateral with approximately 25 miles of 36-inch diameter pipeline. Total project costs are estimated to
be approximately $710.0 million with a projected in-service date of mid-2008, subject to FERC approval. Project expenditures incurred by Transwestern
through September 30, 2006 were approximately $18.4 million, which includes $7.1 million reimbursed in September 2006 to a Southern Union affiliate
for Phoenix project expenditures.

Rates and Regulatory Matters

The level of Transwestern’s transportation rates and fuel retention percentages will be affected by Transwestern’s pending rate case, which was filed on
September 29, 2006 as required under the settlement of Transwestern’s 1993 rate case. The 2006 rate case reflects a requested increase in annual cost of
service from $170.0 million to $210.0 million. FERC has suspended the implementation of the rates and fuel percentages until April 2007. Based on filed
fuel retention factors, which included some individual rate decreases and some individual rate increases, the average fuel retention rates and related
operational gas sales volumes are expected to decrease. The ultimate outcome of the rate case will be determined through litigation or settlement of the rate
case, and is impossible to determine at this time.

Environmental Matters

Transwestern’s operations are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations regarding water quality, hazardous and solid waste management, air
quality control and other environmental matters. These laws and regulations require Transwestern to conduct its operations in a specified manner and to
obtain and comply with a wide variety of environmental registrations, licenses, permits, inspections and other approvals. Failure to comply with
environmental requirements may expose Transwestern to significant fines, penalties and/or interruptions in operations. Transwestern’s environmental
policies and procedures are designed to achieve compliance with such laws and regulations. These evolving laws and regulations and claims for damages to
property, employees, other persons and the environment resulting from current or past operations may result in significant expenditures and liabilities in the
future. Transwestern engages in a process of updating and revising its procedures for the ongoing evaluation of its operations to identify potential
environmental exposures and enhance compliance with regulatory requirements.
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TRANSWESTERN PIPELINE COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
Transwestern follows the provisions of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statement of Position 96-1, Environmental Remediation
Liabilities, for recognition, measurement, display and disclosure of environmental remediation liabilities.

Transwestern conducts soil and groundwater remediation at a number of its facilities. Some of the clean up activities include remediation of several
compressor sites on the Transwestern system for presence of polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) which are not eligible for recovery in rates. The costs of all
such remediation totaled $1.5 million and $0.4 million during the nine month periods ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Of the $1.5 million
in remediation expenditures as of September 30, 2006, $0.1 million was recorded in expense and $1.4 million was charged against an environmental
reserve in deferred credits. The total future estimated cost of remediation activities expected to continue for several years is $13.7 million. Transwestern
will request recovery of the portion of soil and groundwater remediation not related to PCBs in the next rate case. The table below reflects the amount of
accrued liabilities recorded on an undiscounted basis in the Balance Sheet at September 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 to cover remediation activities:

 

   
September 30,

2006   
December 31,

2005
   (In thousands)
Current   $ 5,707  $ 3,454
Noncurrent    7,519   10,175

        

Total Environmental Liabilities   $ 13,226  $ 13,629
        

Transwestern incurred, and continues to incur, certain costs related to PCBs that migrated into customer’s facilities. Because of the continued detection of
PCBs in the customer’s facilities downstream of Transwestern’s Topock and Needles stations, Transwestern, as part of ongoing arrangements with
customers, continues to incur costs associated with containing and removing the PCBs. Costs of these remedial activities totaled $0.6 million and $0.3
million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Future costs cannot be reasonably estimated because remediation activities
are undertaken as claims are made by customers and former customers, and accordingly, no accrual has been established for these costs at September 30,
2006 and December 31, 2005. However, such future costs are not expected to have a material impact on Transwestern’s financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

Environmental regulations were recently modified for United States Environmental Protection Agency’s Spill Prevention, Control and Countermeasures
(SPCC) program. Transwestern is currently reviewing the impact to its operations and expects to expend resources on tank integrity testing and any
associated corrective actions as well as potential upgrades to containment structures. Costs associated with tank integrity testing and resulting corrective
actions cannot be reasonably estimated at this time, but Transwestern believes such costs will not have a material adverse effect on its financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

Based on information available at this time, and the reviews undertaken by Transwestern to identify potential exposure, Transwestern believes the amount
reserved for all of the above environmental matters is adequate to cover the potential exposure for clean-up costs.
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TRANSWESTERN PIPELINE COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
Capital Commitments and Purchase Obligations

Transwestern has operating leases, some of which are subject to a CPI-based adjustment, which extend existing rights-of-way along its natural gas pipeline
system. Lease costs totaled $5.2 million and $4.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Future minimum payments under non-cancelable leases to continue for several years are estimated to be $16.7 million as of September 30, 2006.

In addition to the lease payments, Transwestern recognizes noncash lease expense related to amortization of prepayments made in accordance with certain
lease terms. In 2001, Transwestern paid $3.5 million in a lump sum for a right-of-way lease, which is being amortized to lease expense over the twenty-
year period beginning January 1, 2003. In 2002, Transwestern paid $18.0 million in a lump sum for a right-of-way lease, which is being amortized to lease
expense over the six-year period beginning January 1, 2004. Included in the future minimum lease payments for that six-year lease agreement are amounts
that commenced January 1, 2004 at an initial annual payment of $2.3 million, subject to a CPI-based adjustment in future years. The remainder of the
future minimum lease payments pertains to a twenty-year lease agreement with annual payment requirements of $0.3 million, which became effective on
December 28, 2002.

Sale of Assets

In June, 2006 Transwestern sold a portion of its pipeline system to PVR Midstream LLC. The facilities, known as the East of Canadian River Facilities,
consists of approximately 117 miles of pipeline and 4,000 horsepower of compression located in Hemphill and Lipscomb Counties, Texas and Roger Mills,
Ellis and Beaver Counties, Oklahoma. Transwestern received proceeds of $14.6 million and recorded a loss on the sale of $0.1 million included in Other
Income in the accompanying statements of operations. Transwestern anticipates the sale will result in a reduction in annual revenues of approximately $0.9
million.

Calpine Energy Services

Transwestern continues to invoice Calpine for firm transportation on its original contract pursuant to its tariff until the contract status is resolved in the
bankruptcy proceeding (see Note 7). The Calpine invoicing of $2.1 million and offsetting reserve of $2.1 million as of September 30, 2006 is reflected
within Other Assets in the accompanying balance sheets. The invoicing has no further impact to Transwestern’s financials.
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Exhibit 99.3

ENERGY TRANSFER PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction

Following are Energy Transfer Partners, L.P.’s (“ETP”) unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated balance sheet as of August 31, 2006 and unaudited pro
forma condensed consolidated statement of operations for the year then ended. The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements give pro
forma effect to the following transactions:
 

•  The issuance of approximately $800 million of ETP’s public debt under an S-3 registration statement and approximately $1.2 billion of proceeds net of
estimated offering costs from the private placement issuance of approximately 26.1 million Class G limited partner units to finance the acquisition of Titan
Energy Partners LP and Titan Energy GP LLC (collectively, “Titan”) in June 2006 and Transwestern Pipeline Company, LLC (Transwestern) in December
2006, as discussed below. The Class G units were issued to Energy Transfer Equity, L.P. (ETE);

 

•  The acquisition of Titan which closed on June 1, 2006 (the “Titan acquisition”). The entire cash purchase price for the acquisition of Titan ($548.5 million
net of cash acquired of approximately $24.5 million as of June 1, 2006) was initially financed with funds advanced under ETP’s revolving credit facility.
These borrowings under the revolving credit facility were repaid with the proceeds from the issuance of ETP’s public debt and Class G units, as discussed
below; and

 

•  The acquisition of Transwestern in a two-step process, as discussed below in the “Transwestern Acquisition” section.

The Titan and Transwestern acquisitions were effectively financed 50% with long-term debt and 50% with limited partner equity.

Titan Acquisition in June 2006

Titan is the successor entity of Cornerstone Propane Partners, L.P. (the Predecessor) and is a marketer of propane and refined fuels in the United States serving
approximately 331,000 residential, commercial, industrial and agricultural customers from approximately 145 customer service centers in 33 states as of June 1,
2006. Titan continued the business of the Predecessor Company upon emergence from bankruptcy. Titan’s core business consists principally of (a) the retail
marketing and distribution of propane for residential, commercial, industrial, agricultural and other retail uses; (b) the repair and maintenance of propane heating
systems and appliances; and (c) the sale of propane-related supplies, appliances and other equipment. Titan’s operations are located in the east, south, central and
west coast regions of the United States.

The acquisition cost of the Titan assets reflected in the accompanying historical consolidated balance sheet of ETP as of August 31, 2006, was as follows (in
000’s):
 

Base purchase price as per the merger agreement   $ 549,700
Plus estimated relocation and termination costs    4,000
Plus accrued compensation expense as of June 1, 2006 paid with acquired cash    23,247
Plus other liabilities assumed as of June 1, 2006    42,341

    

Total acquisition cost allocated to assets acquired   $ 619,288
    

In the accompanying historical consolidated balance sheet of ETP as of August 31, 2006, the total acquisition cost of the Titan assets acquired was preliminarily
allocated as follows (in 000’s):
 

Current assets   $ 58,234
Property and equipment    202,598
Intangible and other assets    80,307
Goodwill    278,149

    

Total   $619,288
    



Transwestern Acquisition in December 2006

On September 15, 2006, ETP announced that it had entered into agreements with GE Energy Financial Services and Southern Union Company to acquire the
Transwestern Pipeline. The Transwestern Pipeline is a 2,500 mile interstate natural gas pipeline system that connects supply areas in the San Juan Basin in
southern Colorado and northern New Mexico, the Anadarko Basin in the Mid-continent and the Permian Basin in west Texas to markets in the Midwest, Texas,
Arizona, New Mexico and California. The Transwestern Pipeline interconnects to ETP’s existing intrastate pipelines in west Texas as well as other intrastate and
interstate pipelines in west Texas. The agreements provided for a series of transactions in which ETP initially acquired on November 1, 2006, all of the member
interests in CCE Holdings, LLC (“CCEH”) owned by GE Energy Financial Services and certain other investors for $1 billion. The member interests acquired
represented a 50% ownership in CCEH, which was formed in 2004 to purchase CrossCountry Energy. In the second transaction, which closed on December 1,
2006, CCEH redeemed ETP’s 50% ownership in CCEH in exchange for 100% ownership of Transwestern, ETP’s assumption of $520 million of Transwestern
long-term indebtedness and ETP’s receipt of acquired cash of approximately $55 million. Following this final step, Transwestern Pipeline Company, LLC became
a new operating subsidiary of ETP.

The total purchase price of Transwestern included in the accompanying pro forma consolidated balance sheet as of August 31, 2006 was determined as follows
(in 000’s):
 

Purchase price paid   $ 1,000,000 
Assumed obligations    576,394 
Fair value adjustment of long-term debt    (6,527)

    
 

Total acquisition cost allocated to assets   $ 1,569,867 
    

 

The total purchase price exceeds the net assets of Transwestern at September 30, 2006 by approximately $215.7 million. In the accompanying pro forma
consolidated balance sheet as of August 31, 2006, such excess was preliminarily allocated as follows (in 000’s):
 

Property and equipment   $  114,512 
Goodwill    (16,176)
Contract rights    75,263 
Rights of way    55,818 
Other assets    (13,700)

    
 

  $ 215,717 
    

 

Issuances of ETP Public Debt and Class G units

On August 9, 2006, ETP filed a Registration Statement on Form S-3 with the Securities and Exchange Commission to register up to $1.5 billion aggregate
offering price of a combination of Limited Partner interests of Energy Transfer Partners, L.P. and debt securities. On October 23, 2006, ETP closed the issuance,
under its $1.5 billion S-3 registration statement, of $400,000 of 6.125% Senior Notes due 2017 and $400,000 of 6.625% Senior Notes due 2036, and received net
proceeds of approximately $791,000. Interest on the 2017 Senior Notes is payable semiannually on February 15 and August 15 of each year, beginning
February 15, 2007, and interest on the 2036 Senior Notes is payable semiannually on April 15 and October 15 of each year, beginning April 15, 2007. The notes
are unsecured senior obligations and will be fully and unconditionally guaranteed by ETP’s subsidiary operating partnerships, ETC OLP and Titan and all of their
direct and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries. The proceeds were used to reduce amounts outstanding under ETP’s revolving credit facility and pay related
accrued interest.

On November 1, 2006, ETP issued approximately 26.1 million ETP Class G limited partner units to ETE for aggregate proceeds of $1.2 billion in order to fund a
portion of the Transwestern acquisition and to repay a portion of the indebtedness incurred in connection with the Titan acquisition, as discussed above. The ETP
Class G Units, a newly created class of ETP’s Limited Partner interests, were issued to ETE at a price of $46.00 per unit, which was based upon a market discount
from the closing price of ETP’s Common Units on October 31, 2006. The ETP Class G Units were issued to ETE pursuant to a customary agreement, and
registration rights have been granted to ETE.
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Pro Forma Financial Statements

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements are provided for informational purposes only and should be read in conjunction with the
audited and unaudited financial statements of Titan previously included in a Form 8-K, the audited and unaudited financial statements of Transwestern included in
this Form 8-K and the ETP Form 10-K for the year ended August 31, 2006. The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements include the
following:
 

•  The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated balance sheet of ETP as of August 31, 2006, which presents the pro forma effects as if the Transwestern
acquisition and the debt and equity issuances described above occurred on August 31, 2006. The acquisition of Titan is already reflected in the historical
consolidated balance sheet of ETP as of August 31, 2006; however, the pro forma adjustments include adjustments of the Titan purchase price allocation
recorded in the quarter ended November 30, 2006 resulting from the receipt of the independent appraisal of the acquired Titan assets; and

 

•  the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statement of operations of ETP for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2006, which presents the pro forma
effects of the Titan and Transwestern acquisitions and related debt and equity offerings as if such transactions occurred on September 1, 2005.

The following unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements are based on certain assumptions and do not purport to be indicative of the
results which actually would have been achieved if the Titan and Transwestern acquisitions and the related debt and equity issuances had been completed on the
dates indicated. Moreover, they do not project ETP’s financial position or results of operations for any future date or period.

The accompanying pro forma financial statements reflect purchase price allocations which are preliminary as the purchase price allocation for the Titan and
Transwestern acquisitions reflected in the pro forma statements has not been completed. ETP’s management has engaged an appraisal firm to prepare an appraisal
of the Transwestern tangible and identifiable intangible assets to support the purchase price allocation. Such appraisal is expected to be completed by January 31,
2007. The purchase price allocation is affected by the amount of current assets and liabilities at the closing date (December 1, 2006), and the closing date balance
sheet will not be available until approximately January 15, 2007. Management believes that the final purchase price allocation will be finalized by August 31,
2007. The purchase price allocation reflected in the accompanying pro forma financial statements is based on the best estimates available at this time and on the
unaudited balance sheet of Transwestern as of September 30, 2006. Management expects to complete the Titan allocation during the second quarter of fiscal year
2007. There is no guarantee that the preliminary allocation, and consequently the pro forma financial statements, will not change. To the extent that the final
allocation results in an increased allocation to goodwill, this amount would not be subject to amortization, but would be subject to an annual impairment testing
and if necessary, written-down to a lower fair value should circumstances warrant. To the extent the final allocation results in a decrease to the preliminary
allocation to goodwill done for the purpose of preparing these pro forma financial statements, the amount would be subject to depreciation or amortization which
would result in a decrease to the estimated pro forma income reflected in the accompanying pro forma statements of operations for the respective periods.
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ENERGY TRANSFER PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As of August 31, 2006
(in thousands)

 

   

Historical
Energy Transfer

Partners, L.P.
as of

August 31, 2006   

Historical
Transwestern

Pipeline
Company, LLC

as of
September 30, 2006  

Pro Forma
Adjustments

(Note 2)     Pro forma
ASSETS         

CURRENT ASSETS:         
Cash   $ 26,041  $ 48,236  $ 1,199,239  (a)  $ 36,416

      $ (200,000) (a)  
       24,000  (g)  
       (55,000) (m) 
       (1,000,000) (b)  
       (6,100) (k)  

Marketable securities    2,817   —     —      2,817
Accounts receivable    675,545   19,774   —      695,319
Accounts receivable from affiliates    897   428   —      1,325
Inventories    387,140   —     —      387,140
Deposits paid to vendors    87,806   —     —      87,806
Exchanges receivable    23,221   5,517   —      28,738
Price risk management assets    56,139   —     —      56,139
Prepaid expenses and other assets    42,198   5,869   —      48,067

            
 

    

Total current assets    1,301,804   79,824   (37,861)   1,343,767

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net    3,313,649   1,069,488   114,512  (b)   4,500,474
       2,825  (l)  

LONG-TERM PRICE RISK MANAGEMENT ASSETS    2,192   —     —      2,192
ADVANCES TO AND INVESTMENT IN AFFILIATES    41,344   —     —      41,344
GOODWILL    604,409   113,289   (16,176) (b)   698,697

       (2,825) (l)  
REGULATORY ASSETS    —     62,007   —      62,007
INTANGIBLES AND OTHER ASSETS, net    191,615   29,542   131,081  (b)   344,638

       6,100  (k)  
       (13,700) (b)  
            

 
    

Total assets   $ 5,455,013  $ 1,354,150  $ 183,956   $6,993,119
            

 

    



 

   

Historical
Energy Transfer

Partners, L.P.
as of

August 31, 2006   

Historical
Transwestern

Pipeline
Company, LLC

as of
September 30, 2006  

Pro Forma
Adjustments

(Note 2)     Pro forma
LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS’ CAPITAL         

CURRENT LIABILITIES:         
Current portion of long-term debt   $ 40,578  $ —    $ —     $ 40,578
Accounts payable trade    603,140   1,526   —      604,666
Accounts payable to related parties    650   4,890   —      5,540
Exchanges payable    24,722   5,558   —      30,280
Customer advances and deposits    108,836   —     —      108,836
Accrued liabilities    201,017   34,498   —      235,515
Price risk management liabilities    36,918   —     —      36,918
Deferred income taxes    629   —     —      629

            
 

    

Total current liabilities    1,016,490   46,472   —      1,062,962

LONG-TERM DEBT    2,589,124   520,000   (200,000) (a)   2,847,597
       (55,000) (m) 
       (6,527) (b)  

LONG-TERM PRICE RISK MANAGEMENT LIABILITIES    1,728   —     —      1,728
DEFERRED TAXES    106,842   —     —      106,842
OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES    2,110   9,922   —      12,032
MINORITY INTERESTS    1,857   —     —      1,857

            
 

    

   3,718,151   576,394   (261,527)   4,033,018
            

 
    

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES         
PARTNERS’ CAPITAL:         

Member’s equity    —     777,756   (777,756) (b)   —  
General Partner    82,450   —     24,000  (g)   106,450
Common Unitholders    1,647,345   —     —      1,647,345
Class G Unitholders    —     —     (761) (a)   1,199,239

       1,200,000  (a)  
Accumulated other comprehensive income    7,067   —     —      7,067

            
 

    

Total partners’ capital    1,736,862   777,756   445,483    2,960,101
            

 
    

Total liabilities and partners’ capital   $ 5,455,013  $ 1,354,150  $ 183,956   $6,993,119
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ENERGY TRANSFER PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended August 31, 2006
(in thousands, except unit and per unit data)

 

   

For the Year
Ended

August 31, 2006   

For the Nine
Months Ended
March 31, 2006  

For the Twelve
Months Ended

September 30, 2006          

   

Historical
Energy

Transfer
Partners, L.P.   

Historical
Titan   

Historical
Transwestern

Pipeline
Company, LLC   

Pro forma
Adjustments

(Note 2)      Pro forma  
REVENUES:        

Midstream, transportation and storage   $ 6,877,512  $ —    $ 227,771  $ —     $ 7,105,283 
Propane and other    981,584   334,957   —     —      1,316,541 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

Total revenues    7,859,096   334,957   227,771   —      8,421,824 
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
    

 

COSTS AND EXPENSES:        
Cost of products sold    6,568,316   197,203   —     —      6,765,519 
Operating expenses    422,989   —     68,651   —      491,640 
Depreciation and amortization    117,415   17,637   36,413   12,571  (i)  184,036 
Restructuring charges    —     2,201   —     —      2,201 
Selling, general and administrative    107,505   89,385   11,257   —      208,147 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

Total costs and expenses    7,216,225   306,426   116,321   12,571    7,651,543 
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
    

 

OPERATING INCOME    642,871   28,531   111,450   (12,571)   770,281 
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
    

 

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):        
Interest expense    (113,857)  (8,778)  (31,781)  8,778  (h)  (178,076)

      (43,820) (d) 
      (425) (f) 
      (558) (e) 
      1,740  (n) 
      10,625  (o) 

Equity in losses of affiliates    (479)  —     —     —      (479)
Reorganization expenses    —     (1,817)  —     —      (1,817)
Gain on disposal of assets    851   (2)  —     —      849 
Interest income and other    14,620   829   1,518   —      16,967 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

   (98,865)  (9,768)  (30,263)  (23,660)   (162,556)
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
    

 

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE AND
MINORITY INTEREST    544,006   18,763   81,187   (36,231)   607,725 

Income tax provision    (25,920)  —     —     756  (c)  (25,164)
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
    

 

INCOME BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST    518,086   18,763   81,187   (35,475)   582,561 
Minority interest    (2,234)  —     —     —      (2,234)

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

Net income   $ 515,852  $ 18,763  $ 81,187  $ (35,475)  $ 580,327 
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

    

 

Weighted average units - basic    109,036,265     26,086,957  (j)  135,123,222 
Weighted average units - diluted    109,334,778     26,086,957  (j)  135,421,735 

Net income per unit - basic (Note 3)   $ 3.16      $ 2.90 
    

 

       

 

Net income per unit - diluted (Note 3)   $ 3.15      $ 2.90 
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ENERGY TRANSFER PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per unit data)

 
1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION, ACQUISITIONS AND OTHER TRANSACTIONS

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited pro forma financial statements present (i) the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated balance sheet of Energy Transfer
Partners, L.P. and subsidiaries (“ETP”) as of August 31, 2006, giving effect to the Transwestern acquisition, purchase price allocation adjustments for the
Titan acquisition and the proceeds from the issuance of debt and issuance of Class G limited partner units used to finance the Titan and Transwestern
acquisitions as if these transactions occurred on August 31, 2006; and (ii) the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statement of operations for the
year ended August 31, 2006, giving effect to the transactions described below as if they occurred on September 1, 2005. The accompanying unaudited pro
forma financial statements include the historical results of operations for ETP for the year ended August 31, 2006, the unaudited historical results of
operations for Titan for the nine months ended March 31, 2006 and the unaudited historical results of operations of Transwestern for the twelve months
ended September 30, 2006. The historical financial statements have been adjusted for the pro forma adjustments, as discussed below. The historical results
of operations of Titan for the three months ended August 31, 2006 are reflected in the historical results of operations of ETP for the year ended August 31,
2006, and the ETP historical consolidated balance sheet as of August 31, 2006 includes the accounts of Titan.

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements do not give any effect to any restructuring cost, potential cost savings, or other
operating efficiencies that are expected to result from the Titan or Transwestern acquisitions. The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements are
based on certain assumptions and do not purport to be indicative of the results which actually would have been achieved if the Titan and Transwestern
acquisitions, the $800 million debt issuance, and the $1.2 billion Class G limited partner unit offering had been consummated on the dates indicated or
which may be achieved in the future. Moreover, it does not project ETP’s financial position or results of operations for any future date or period. The
purchase accounting adjustments made in connection with the development of the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements with respect to the
Transwestern acquisition are preliminary and have been made solely for purposes of presenting such pro forma financial information. The allocation of the
purchase price for the acquisitions of Titan and Transwestern has not been finalized, as discussed above.

Titan Acquisition

On April 19, 2006, ETP signed a definitive agreement with Titan Energy Partners, L.P. under which ETP acquired, on June 1, 2006, all of the propane
operations of Titan Energy Partners, L.P. and Titan Energy GP, LLC for approximately $548 million, net of cash acquired of $24.5 million at June 1, 2006.
ETP financed the acquisition initially with advances under its revolving credit facility. ETP subsequently repaid the revolving credit advances with
proceeds received through a combination of the sale of a new public debt offering and a private placement of its Class G limited partner units, as discussed
below under “Financing Transactions.”

The Titan acquisition is accounted for as a business combination using the purchase method of accounting in accordance with the provisions of Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141. The total cost of the Titan acquisition was as follows (in thousands):

 
Base purchase price as per the merger agreement   $549,700
Plus estimated termination and relocation costs    4,000
Plus accrued compensation obligation as of June 1, 2006    23,247
Plus other assumed Titan obligations as of June 1, 2006    42,341

    

Total acquisition cost allocated to assets acquired   $619,288
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For purposes of this pro forma analysis, the purchase price of the Titan transaction has been allocated using the independent valuation obtained subsequent
to August 31, 2006. For purposes of the historical consolidated balance sheet of ETP as of August 31, 2006, the purchase price was assigned primarily to
depreciable fixed assets, amortizable and non-amortizable intangible assets, and non-amortizable goodwill. Management of ETP engaged an appraisal firm
to perform the asset appraisal in order to develop a definitive allocation of the purchase price. As a result, the purchase price allocation reflected herein
differs from the preliminary allocation. The adjusted pro forma purchase price allocation is as follows (in thousands):

 
Current assets   $ 58,234
Property, plant and equipment, including construction in progress    205,423
Intangible assets    74,532
Goodwill    275,324
Other assets    5,775

    

Total assets   $619,288
    

Transwestern Acquisition

On September 15, 2006, ETP announced that it had entered into agreements with GE Energy Financial Services and Southern Union Company to acquire
the Transwestern Pipeline. The Transwestern Pipeline is a 2,500 mile interstate natural gas pipeline system that connects supply areas in the San Juan Basin
in southern Colorado and northern New Mexico, the Anadarko Basin in the Mid-continent and the Permian Basin in west Texas to markets in the Midwest,
Texas, Arizona, New Mexico and California. The Transwestern Pipeline interconnects to ETP’s existing intrastate pipelines in west Texas as well as other
intrastate and interstate pipelines in west Texas.

The agreements provided for a series of transactions in which, on November 1, 2006, ETP initially acquired all of the member interests in CCE Holdings,
LLC (“CCEH”) owned by GE Energy Financial Services and certain other investors for $1 billion. The member interests acquired represented a 50%
ownership in CCEH, which was formed in 2004 to purchase CrossCountry Energy. In the second transaction, which closed on December 1, 2006, CCEH
redeemed ETP’s 50% ownership in CCEH in exchange for 100% ownership of Transwestern, ETP’s assumption of $520 million in fixed rate long-term
debt and ETP’s receipt of a $55 million distribution from the acquired cash. Following this final step, Transwestern Pipeline Company, LLC became a new
operating subsidiary of ETP.

Of the assumed long-term debt, $289.5 million must be paid by February 2007. ETP intends to refinance the debt with advances under its revolving credit
facility. In the allocation of purchase price, the remaining fixed rate debt not requiring prepayment is recorded at fair value, which results in a reduction of
the book value of the debt of $6.5 million.

The total purchase price of Transwestern included in the accompanying pro forma consolidated balance sheet as of August 31, 2006 was determined as
follows (in 000’s):

 
Purchase price paid   $1,000,000 
Assumed obligations    576,394 
Fair value adjustment of debt    (6,527)

    
 

Total acquisition cost allocated to assets   $1,569,867 
    

 

The total purchase price exceeds the net assets of Transwestern at September 30, 2006 by approximately $215.7 million. In the accompanying pro forma
consolidated balance sheet as of August 31, 2006, such excess was preliminarily allocated as follows (in 000’s):

 
Property and equipment   $ 114,512 
Goodwill    (16,176)
Contract rights    75,263 
Rights of way    55,818 
Other assets    (13,700)

    
 

  $215,717 
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Financing Transactions

On August 9, 2006 ETP filed a Registration Statement on Form S-3 with the Securities and Exchange Commission to register up to $1.5 billion aggregate
offering price of a combination of Limited Partner interests of Energy Transfer Partners, L.P. and debt securities. On October 23, 2006, ETP closed the
issuance, under its $1.5 billion S-3 registration statement, of $400,000 of 6.125% Senior Notes due 2017 and $400,000 of 6.625% Senior Notes due 2036,
and received net proceeds of approximately $791,000. Interest on the 2017 Senior Notes is payable semiannually on February 15 and August 15 of each
year, beginning February 15, 2007, and interest on the 2036 Senior Notes is payable semiannually on April 15 and October 15 of each year, beginning
April 15, 2007. The notes are unsecured senior obligations and will be fully and unconditionally guaranteed by ETP’s subsidiary operating partnerships,
ETC OLP and Titan and all of their direct and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries. The proceeds were used to reduce amounts outstanding under ETP’s
revolving credit facility and pay related accrued interest.

On November 1, 2006, ETP issued approximately 26.1 million ETP Class G limited partner units to ETE for aggregate proceeds of $1.2 billion in order to
fund a portion of the Transwestern acquisition and to repay the indebtedness incurred in connection with the Titan acquisition, as discussed above. The ETP
Class G Units, a newly created class of ETP’s Limited Partner interests, were issued to ETE at a price of $46.00 per unit, which was based upon a market
discount from the closing price of ETP’s Common Units on October 31, 2006. The ETP Class G Units were issued to ETE pursuant to a customary
agreement, and registration rights have been granted to ETE.

 
2. Pro Forma Adjustments
 

 
(a) Reflects the estimated proceeds from issuance of Class G limited partner units to ETE, net of issuance costs of $0.8 million. The proceeds received in

excess of the funds required to fund the acquisition of Transwestern ($200 million) were used to reduce borrowings under ETP’s revolving credit
facility.

 

 

(b) Reflects the acquisition of Transwestern and the allocation of the excess purchase price over Transwestern’s historical net assets (a total of $215.7
million) to property, plant and equipment of $114.5 million, goodwill of $(16.2) million (including the adjustment discussed below), intangible assets
of $131.1 million and a reduction of other assets of $13.7 million for debt issuance costs of Transwestern, which debt has been adjusted to fair value.
This allocation is preliminary. The final allocation will be made using the independent appraisal of the tangible and intangible asset when received.
Also includes an adjustment to record Transwestern debt at fair value. The Transwestern debt was at a fixed rate of approximately 5.5%. The debt
was adjusted to a fair value interest rate of 5.87%. This reduces the book value of debt by $6.5 million.

 

 
(c) Reflects the adjustment for the income tax expense of Heritage Holdings, Inc. that would have been realized had the additional Titan and

Transwestern income been earned by ETP, reduced by the dilutive effect of the distributions that would have been made on the adjusted units
outstanding.

 

 
(d) Reflects the increased interest expense that would have resulted from borrowings to fund the Titan and Transwestern acquisitions. The public debt

issuance was at an average interest rate of 6.38%. For the year ended August 31, 2006, the average additional debt financing that would have been
required for the Titan and Transwestern acquisitions was approximately $687.4 million, at a fixed interest rate of 6.38%.

 

 
(e) Reflects the incremental interest that would have resulted from refinancing the Transwestern fixed-rate debt (5.46%) that must be prepaid in 2007

($289.5 million) with borrowings from ETP’s revolving credit facility which is a variable rate. A 1/8% change in the interest rate would result in
additional monthly interest expense of approximately $30,000.

 

 
(f) Reflects additional amortization expense of $425,000 related to the estimated financing costs of the debt used to fund the Titan and Transwestern

acquisitions. The estimated financing costs are amortized over a 15 year period, the average maturity period of the public debt issued to fund a
portion of the Titan and Transwestern acquisition costs.

 

 (g) Reflects the contribution by ETP’s general partner, ETP GP, L.P., required in order to maintain its 2% general partner interest in ETP.
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(h) Reflects the elimination of Titan’s historical interest expense in order to reflect only the incremental interest expense related to the debt issued to

finance the Titan and Transwestern acquisitions. The Titan long-term debt was canceled in connection with the acquisition. The Transwestern debt, as
described in the accompanying historical financial statements for Transwestern, was assumed in connection with the Transwestern acquisition.

 

 

(i) Reflects the estimated net adjustment to depreciation and amortization expense resulting from the step-up of the net book value of property, plant and
equipment and identifiable intangible assets acquired in the Titan and Transwestern acquisitions. The allocation to property and equipment in excess
of Titan’s historical net book value at June 1, 2006 relates primarily to company-owned storage tanks, vehicles and other equipment, which are
depreciated over their expected useful lives (estimated as 30 years for storage tanks, 5 years for vehicles and 10 years for other equipment) for the
purpose of the accompanying pro forma financial statements. The allocation to intangible assets in excess of Titan’s historical cost relates primarily
to customer lists and trademarks. The allocation to customer lists is amortized over the expected remaining useful life (approximately 15 years) for
the purpose of the pro forma financial statements. Trademarks and goodwill are indefinite-lived assets subject to annual tests for impairment, thus no
amortization has been reflected in the accompanying pro forma financial statements for the amounts allocated to those intangible assets. An increase
in the allocation to property and equipment of Titan of $5 million would result in an increase to annual depreciation expense of approximately
$295,000.

The step-up of the Transwestern assets was allocated as indicated above. The weighted average plant system life for depreciation lives for the
allocation to property and equipment is assumed to be 39 years. The adjustment to other assets for contract rights ($75.3 million) is amortized over
remaining lives of 8-15 years. The adjustment to rights of way ($55.8 million) is amortized at a rate of 1.2% per month. The amount allocated to
goodwill is estimated at this date and is subject to change. Goodwill has not been amortized in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States. The final purchase price allocation may result in a modification of the Transwestern allocation reflected in the
accompanying pro forma financial statements, which may be material and which would result in a change in the estimated additional depreciation
and amortization. An increase or decrease in the allocation to property and equipment of Transwestern of $5 million would result in an adjustment to
depreciation expense of approximately $128,000. An adjustment of contract rights of $5 million would result in an annual adjustment of $530,000 to
amortization expense.

 

 (j) Reflects the limited partner units issued to ETE as discussed above.
 

 (k) Reflects debt issuance costs incurred.
 

 
(l) Reflects the adjustment to the Titan purchase allocation as discussed above, an increase of property and equipment, and reduction of goodwill of $2.8

million.
 

 (m) Reflects utilization of acquired cash from Transwestern upon closing to reduce amounts outstanding under ETP’s revolving credit facility.
 

 (n) Reflects reversal of Transwestern debt cost amortization due to adjusting such debt to fair value.
 

 
(o) Reflects reduction of interest expense that results from use of excess proceeds (see (a) above) to reduce debt outstanding during the year ended

August 31, 2006.
 
3. Earnings per Unit Computation

Basic and diluted net income per limited partner unit for the historical and pro forma statements of operations have been presented to reflect the application
of EITF 03-6. The Partnership’s net income for income statement and partners’ capital purposes is allocated to the General Partner and Limited Partners in
accordance with their respective partnership percentages, after giving effect to any priority income allocations for incentive distributions, if any, to the
Partnership’s General Partner, the holders of the incentive distribution rights pursuant to the Partnership Agreement, which are declared and paid following
the close of each quarter. For purposes of computing basic and diluted net income per limited partner unit, in periods when the Partnership’s aggregate net
income exceeds the aggregate distributions for such period, an increased amount of net income is allocated to the General Partner for the additional pro
forma priority income attributable to the application of EITF 03-6. The General Partner is entitled to receive incentive distributions if the amount the
Partnership distributes with respect to any quarter exceeds levels specified in the Partnership Agreement.
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  ETP Historical
Year Ended
August 31,

2006  

 Pro forma
Year Ended
August 31,

2006     
Net income   $ 515,852  $ 580,327 
Adjustments:    

General Partner’s incentive distributions (IDRs)    (108,813)  (134,444)
General Partner’s equity ownership    (10,172)  (11,463)

    
 

   
 

Limited Partners’ interest in net income    396,867   434,420 
Income allocable to class C units    (3,599)  (3,599)
Additional earnings allocation to General Partner    (48,781)  (38,438)

    
 

   
 

Net income available to limited partners   $ 344,487  $ 392,383 
    

 

   

 

Weighted average limited partner units – basic    109,036,265   135,123,222 
    

 

   

 

Limited Partners’ basic net income per unit   $ 3.16  $ 2.90 
    

 

   

 

Weighted average limited partner units    109,036,265   135,123,222 
Dilutive effect of Unit grants    298,513   298,513 

    
 

   
 

Weighted average limited partner units,
assuming dilutive effect of Unit grants    109,334,778   135,421,735 

    

 

   

 

Limited Partners’ diluted net income per unit   $ 3.15  $ 2.90 
    

 

   

 

 
4. Other Income

Included in “Interest income and other” for ETP for the year ended August 31, 2006 is approximately $7.2 million of income from the settlement of
litigation. The non-recurring income is not excluded from the pro forma income as it does not result directly from the Titan or Transwestern acquisitions.
However, ETP does not expect to realize similar income in the future.
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